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NEC Electronics Reports Financial Results for the
First Quarter Ended June 30, 2008

KAWASAKI, Japan, July 30, 2008 — NEC Electronics Corporation (TSE: 6723} today

announced consolidated financial results for the first quarter ended June 30, 2008.
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Consolidated Financial Results for theé First Quarter Ended June 30, 2008 FASE

Prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, or U.S. GAAP
English translation from the original Japanese-language document

July 30, 2008
Company name : NEC Electronics Corporation
Stock exchanges on which the shares are listed  : Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section
Code number . 6723
URL : http://www.necel.com
Representative : Toshio Nakajima, President and CEO
Contact person : Taizo Endo, Associate General Manager

Corporate Communications Department
Tel. +81 (0)44-435-1664
Filling date of Shihanki Hokokusho August 13, 2008(Scheduled)

(Amounts are rounded to the nearest million yen)

1. Consolidated results for the first quarter ended June 30, 2008

(1) Consolidated financial results (% change from corresponding period of the previous year)
Income
Operating Before Net
Net Sales Income (Loss) Income Taxes Loss
Million Yen % | Muion ven % | Million Yen % | Milion Yen %
Three Months ended June 30, 2008 166,282 — 1,701 -— 279 - (1.317) -
Three Months ended June 30, 2007 173,573 50 (2,227} — 437 —_ (1,326) -
Net Loss Net Loss
Per Share: Per Share:
Basic Diluted
Yen Yen
Three Months ended June 30, 2008 (10.66) {10.66)
Three Months ended June 30, 2007 (10.74) {10.74)
Note 1: Net loss per share of common stock is prepared in accordance with the Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 128, “Earnings Per Share™.

Note 2: NEC Electronics’ consolidated information is in accordance with U.S. GAAP. However, the figure for
operating income (loss) shown above represents net sales minus the cost of sales, research and
development expenses, and selling, general and administrative expenses.

(2)Consolidated financial position

Shareholders’ Shareholders' Shareholders'
Total Assets Equity Equity Ratio Equity Per Share
Milion Yan Milion Yen % Yen
June 30, 2008 621,175 230,137 37.0 1,863.49
March 31, 2008 616,304 227,138 36.9 1,839.20
Note: The figures for shareholders’ equity are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States, or U.S. GAAP.
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2. Cash dividends

Cash Dividends | Cash Dividends
Cash Dividends | Per Share at the | Per Share at the | Cash Dividends | Annual Cash
Per Share at the | end of second end of third Per Share at the | Dividends Per
end of first quarter, quarter quarter end of year Share
Yen Yen Yen Yen Yen
March 31, 2008 — 0.00 — 0.00 0.00
March 31, 2009 -
March 31, 2008 (forecast) 0.00 - 0.00 0.00
Note: Changes of cash dividends forecasts from these announced previously None
3. Forecast of consolidated results for the year ending March 31, 2009
Income (Loss) Net (ncome
Operating Before Income Net Income (Loss)
Net Sales Income {Loss) Teaxes {Loss) Per Share
Million Yen % | Million Yen % | Milion Yen % | Million Yen % Yen
Six moerths ending
Saotermber 30, 2008 35000 (46)| 3000 620 0 —| (20000 — (16.19)
Year ending March 31, 2009 685000 (04)] 10000 963 4,000 - 0 —_ 0.00
Note: Changes of financial results forecasts from these announced previously  None
4. Other

(1) Changes in significant subsidiaries in the quarter ended June 30, 2008 (changes in
subsidiaries resulting in changes in scope of consolidation)

2 companies excluded (NEC Fukui, Ltd. and NEC Semicon Package Solutions, Ltd.)
Only specified subsidizries are mentioned. Please refer to page 9 for further information.

Note:

(2) Adoption of simplified accounting methods for quarterly reporting

None.

(3) Changes in accounting policies, procedures, and presentations, etc.
(Changes indicated to “Basis of Presenting the Consolidated Financial Statements”)

3.1. Changes resulting from revisions in accounting principles, etc. : Yes

3.2. Other changes : No
Note:

Please refer to page 9 for further information.

(4) Number of shares issued and outstanding (common stock)
4.1. Number of shares issued and outstanding

June 30, 2008:123,500,000 shares

4.2. Number of treasury shares

June 30, 2008:2,07

June 30, 2008:123,497,928 shares

Cautionary Statement

9 shares

March 31, 2008:2,039 shares
4.3. Average number of shares issued and outstanding

March 31, 2008:123,500,000 shares

June 30, 2007:123,498,409 shares

The statements with respect to the financial outlock of NEC Electronics and its consolidated

subsidiaries are forward-looking statements involving risks and uncertainties. We caution you
in advance that actual results may differ materially from such forward-locking statements due
to changes in several important factors.
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Business Results

Analysis of Business Results
(1) Overview of the First Quarter Ended June 30, 2008

in the first quarter ended June 30, 2008, an increasing number of indicators pointed to stagnation in
the global economy. In the United States, domestic demand was weakened by the protracted
readjustment in the financial market, by soaring prices for crude oil and other materials, and by
employment adjustments. In Europe, despite slowing economic growth, financial authorities took
measures to counter the threat of inflation by raising policy interest rates. Asian economies, which
recently have enjoyed vigorous growth, began to show the effects of higher material costs,
stagnating experts, and the Sichuan earthquake. The Japanese economy also experienced a
stowdown due to decreased exports, higher crude oil and food prices, and reduced investment in
housing.

Against the background of the global economic slowdown, the semiconductor market also
experienced sluggish growth. Low-priced personal computers and mobile phones continued to sell
well, but demand for high-end products was weak. The automotive market was depressed by
production cuts in the United States, and there was little evidence that the Beijing Olympics had
spurred demand for digital consumer electronics. In general, the business environment could be
characterized as lackluster.

(2) Summary of Consolidated Financial Results

Three Months
Ended Three Months Ended
June 30, 2007 June 30, 2008 Increase (Decrease)
Billion Yen gillion Yen Million USD | Billien Yen % Change
Net sales 1736 166.3 1,569 (7.3) 4.2)
Operating income {loss) (2.2) 1.7 16 39 -
Income before income taxes 04 0.3 3 (0.2) (36.2)
Net loss {1.3) (1.3) (12} 0.0 —
Yen Yon
Exchange rate {(USD) 119 103 -— -
Exchange rate {(Euro) 160 160 -— —

Note: U.S. dollar amounts are translated from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥106=U.5.$1.

Consolidated net sales for this quarter were 166.3 billion yen, a decrease of 7.3 billion yen, or 4.2%
year on year.

Semiconductor sales increased year on year for Computing and Peripherals, and Automotive and
Industrial. However, sales decreased for Communications, Consumer Elecironics, and Discrete,
Optical, and Microwave Devices products. Particularly in Communications, a sharp fall in sales of
semiconductors for mobile phones resulted in a decrease of approximately 21% year on year.

Consolidated operating income was 1.7 billion yen, an improvement of 3.9 billion yen year on year.
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This was due to a reduction in fixed costs, including R&D expenses, and an improvement in the
cost to sales ratio, which offset lower net sales.

Consolidated income before income taxes totaled 0.3 billion yen, a decrease of 0.2 billion yen year
on year. This was mainly due to recording of one-time non-operating income from the transfer of the
photomask business in the corresponding period of the previous fiscal year.

Consolidated net loss was 1.3 billion yen, roughly comparable to the prior year quarter.

(3) Breakdown of Net Sales by Market Application

Three Months Ended] Three Months Ended

June 30, 2007 June 30, 2008 Increase (Decrease)
Billion Yan Bilion Yen  Million USD Bilion Yen % Change
Communications 207 16.4 155 {4.3) (20.8)

Computing and peripherals 295 30.0 283 0.5 1.5
Consumer elecfronics 33.0 321 303 (0.9) (2.8)

Automotive and industrial 274 29.8 281 2.4 8.7
Multi-market ICs 22.6 21.0 198 (1.5) (6.8)
Discrete, optical, and microwave devices N7 29.8 282 (1.9 (5.9
Semiconductor total 165.0 159.2 1,502 {5.8) (3.5)
Other 8.6 7.1 67 {1.5) (17.2)
Total 1736 166.3 1,569 (7.3) (4.2)

Communications

Products Semiconductors for broadband networking equipment, including routers and mobile-
phone base stations, and semiconductors for mobile handsets.

Net Sales 16.4 billion yen (Down 4.3 billion yen, 20.8% year on year)

Sales of semiconductors for mobile phones such as baseband LS|, memory and LCD
Driver ICs decreased year on year.

Computing and Peripherals

Products Semiconductors for servers, workstations, personal computers, and PC peripherals.

Net Sales 30.0 billion yen (Up 0.5 billion yen, 1.5% year on yea:ur)

Although sales of LCD Driver ICs for flat panel televisions and PC monitors decreased

year on year, this was offset by higher sales of semiconductors for blue laser DVD

drives.

Consumer Electronics
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Products Semiconductors for digital AV equipment and game consoles.

Net Sales 32.1 billion yen (Down 0.9 billion yen, 2.8% year on year)

Sales of EMMA™ series semiconductors for digital consumer applications increased
year on year, but sales of semiconductors for digital cameras declined, ieading to an
overall sales decline.

Automotive and Industrial

Products Semiconductors for automotive and industrial systems, including factory automation
equipment.

Net Sales 29.8 billion yen (Up 2.4 billion yen, 8.7% year on year)

Microcontroller sales to Japanese car audio and automotive electronics manufacturers

increased.

Multi-market ICs
Products  General purpose microcontrollers, gate arrays and muilti-purpose SRAM.

Net sales  21.0 billion yen (Down1.5 billion yen, 6.8% year on year)

Reduced demand due to worsening market conditions resulted in declining sales of

microcontrollers, gate arrays and multi-purpose SRAM.

Discrete, Optical and Microwave Devices

Products Discrete devices such as diodes and transistars; optical semiconductors for optical
communications equipment and DVD devices; and microwave semiconductors for
mobile handsets and other applications.

Net Sales 29.8 billion yen (Down 1.9 biflion yen, 5.9% year on year)

Reduced demand due to worsening market conditions resulted in declining sales of
discrete semiconductors and compound semiconductors.

Other

Products  Non-semiconductor products such as color LCDs, sold on a resale basis by NEC

Electronics’ sales subsidiaries.
Net sales 7.1 billion yen (Down 1.5 billion yen, 17.2% year on year)

Resale of non-semiconductor products is not part of NEC Electronics' core

business.
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(4) Geographical Segment Analysis

Three Months Ended | Three Months Ended Increase
June 30, 2007 June 30, 2008 {Decrease)
Bilion Yen | Bilion Yen Milkon USD |  Bilion Yen % Change
Japan 93.2 891 840 {4.1) (4.9)
United States of America 15.2 123 116 (2.9} (19.3)
Europe 22.7 224 211 (0.3) (1.3)
Asia 42.5 425 402 0.0 0.1
Total 173.6 166.3 1,569 (7.3) 4.2)

Note: Geographic areas are based on the country of the location of the subsidiaries other than Japan and the
United States of America;
Europe: Germany, Great Britain and Ireland
Asia: China, Indonesia, Malaysia, Singapore, South Korea and Taiwan

Japan

Net sales  89.1 billion yen (Down 4.1 billion yen, 4.4% year on year)

Sales of LCD Driver ICs and baseband LS| for mobile phones decreased.

United States of America

Net sales 12.3 billion yen {Down 2.9 billion yen, 19.3% year on year)
Sales of system memory for mobile phones decreased.
Europe

Net sales 22.4 billion yen (Down 0.3 billion yen 1.3% year on year)

Sales of automotive semiconductors increased, but sales of general-purpose

microcontrollers decreased.
The majority of sales in Europe for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 2008 -

were sales of NEC Electronics’ subsidiary in Germany.

Asia

Net sales 42.5 billion yen (Up 0.1% year on year)
Sales of LCD Driver ICs for flat panel televisions and PC monitors decreased, but
sales of camera module for mobile phones increased.

Sales of NEC Electronics’ subsidiaries in China for the three months ended June 30,
2007 and 2008 were 25.5 biliion yen and 22.8 billion yen.
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2. Financial Condition

(1) Total Assets and Shareholders’ Equity

increase
~ March 31, 2008 June 30, 2008 (Decrease)

Bilion Yen Sillion Yen Milion USD Bilion Yen
Total assets 616.3 621.2 5,860 4.9
Shareholders’ equity 2271 230.1 2,17 3.0
Equity ratio 36.9% 37.0% 0.1
Shareholders' equity pershare 1,83¢ ven 1,863yen 17.58 USD 24 yen
Interest-bearing debt 116.6 117.3 1,107 0.7

Total assets at June 30, 2008 totaled 621.2 billion yen, a 4.9 biliion yen increase from March 31,

2008. This was due to increase of inventories.

Compared to March 31, 2008, shareholders’ equity was 3.0 billion yen higher at 230.1 billion yen,

despite posting net loss in the amount of 1.3 billion yen, due to an improvement in losses in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) by 4.3 billion yen from currency fluctuations.

The shareholders' equity ratio improved by 0.1 points from March 31, 2008.

Interest-bearing debi totaled 117.3 billion yen, increasing 0.7 billion yen from March 31, 2008.

(2) Cash Flows

Three Months Ended|  Three Months Ended Increase
June 30, 2007 June 30, 2008 (Decrease)

Billion Yen Bilian Yen Milion USD Billion Yen
Net cash provided by operating activities 1.5 42 40 2.7
Net cash used in investing activities {7.3) (10.9) {103} (3.5)
Free cash flows {5.9) (6.7} {63) (0.8)
Net cash used in financing activiies {3.6) (1.5) (18} 2.1
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1.4 17 17 0.3
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (8.0} (6.5) {61) 1.5
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 185.4 165.5 1,561 (19.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 177.3 158.0 1,500 (18.4)

Net cash provided by operating activities was 4.2 billion yen, despite posting a consolidated net loss
and an increase in inventories, due to depreciation and amortization in the amount of 15.9 billion

yen for the first quarter ended June 30, 2008.

Payments for property, plant, and equipment were 10.5 billion yen, bringing the total net cash used

in investing activities to 10.9 billion yen.

The foregoing resulted in negative free cash flows of 6.7 billion yen.

Financing activities used net cash in the amount of 1.5 billion yen, primarily for the repayment of

debit.
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As a result of the above, combined with the impact from currency fluctuations of 1.7 billion yen,
cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2008 was 159.0 billion yen, a net decrease in the amount of

6.5 billion yen.

. Consolidated Forecasts for the Fiscal Year Ending March 31, 2009

Forecasts for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009 remain unchanged from those announced

previously on May 14, 2008.

Income {Loss) Net Income
Operating Before Income Net Income (Loss}
Net Sales Income {Loss) Taxes {Loss) Per Share
Millian Yen % | Million Yen % Million Yen % Million Yen % Yen
Six months ending
September 30. 2008 335000 (4.6) 3000 620 o -— (2,000) — (16.19)
Year erding March 31, 2009 685,000 (0.4) 10,000 963 4,000 - 0 — 0.00

The consolidated financial forecasts for the fiscal year are calculated at the rate of 100 yen per

USD, and 160 yen per Euro.

Others

(1) Changes in significant subsidiaries in the quarter ended June 30, 2008 {changes in specified

subsidiaries resulting in changes in scope of consolidation)

(2 companies excluded)
1. NEC Fukui, Ltd.
On April1, 2008, NEC Fukui, Ltd. was merged by NEC Kansai, Ltd., NEC Electronics'

consolidated company. (NEC Kansai, Ltd. changed the company name into NEC

Semiconductors Kansai, Ltd. on the same date.)
2. NEC Semicon Package Solutions, Ltd.

On April1, 2008 NEC Semicon Package Solutions, Ltd. was merged by NEC Kyushu, Ltd.,
NEC Electronics’ consolidated company. (NEC 'Kyushu, Ltd. changed the company name into

NEC Semiconductors Kyushu Yamaguchi, Ltd. on the same date.)

(2) Adoption of simplified accounting methods for quarterly reporting

None.

(3) Changes in accounting policies, procedures, and presentations, etc.
Accounting Change

Effective April 1, 2008, the company adopted SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS
No. 1567"). SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair values,

and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The adoption of SFAS No. 157 did not

have a significant effect on its financial position or results of operations. The details of effect of

adopting SFAS No. 157 are omitted because it is immaterial in financial results disclosure.
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Condensed Consolidated Quarterly Financial Statements

1. Condensed Consolidated Quarterly Balance Sheets

. Increase
March 31, 2008 June 30, 2008 {decrease} || June 30, 2007
Millian Yen Milion Yen Million USD Million Yen Million Yen
Current assets 344115 346,339 3267 2,224 376,7NM
Cash and cash equivalents 165472 158,898 1,500 (6,474) 177,349
Notes and accounts receivable, trade 96,352 99,548 939 3,196 104,167
Inventories 75,838 79,518 750 3,679 79,856
Other current assets 6,452 B275 78 1,823 15,419
Long-term assets 272189 274836 2,593 2,647 313,160
Investments 4,565 5047 48 482 8,026
Property, plant and equipment 25815 253,851 2,385 {5,300) 291,483
Other assets 8473 15,938 150 7.465 13,651
Total assels 616,304 621,175 5,860 4,871 689,951
Current liabilities 179,715 173,301 1,635 (6,414) 214,039
Shont-term borrowings and current portion of 2394 1899 18 (495) 19,005
long-term debt
Notes and accounts payable, trade 108,136 106,048 1,000 (2,088) 127,303
Other current liabilities 69,185 65,354 617 (3.831) 67,731
Long-term liabifities 204275 212,955 2,009 8,680 202514
Long-term debt 114,207 115415 1,089 1,208 114,738
Accrued pension and severance costs 74,460 74,541 703 81 70,424
Other 15608 22,999 217 7,391 17.351
Minority shareholders' equity in consoclidated subsidiaries 5176 4782 45 (394) 4744
Shareholders' equity 227138 230,137 2171 2,899 268654
Comman stock 85855 85,955 811 - 85855
Additional paid-in capital 281,073 281,081 2852 8 281,048
Accumulated deficit (114 ,896) {116,213) (1,097) (1,317) (100,227)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) {24,984) (20,676) {195) 4,308 1,887
Treasury stock, at cost (10) (10) (0) - %)
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 616,304 621,175 5,860 4,871 689,951
Interest-bearing debt 116,601 117,314 1,107 713 133,744
Equity ratio 36.9% 37.0% 0.1% 38.9%
Debt I equity ratio .51 times | 0.51 times -~ times 0.50 times
Accumnulated other comprehensive income (loss ).
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1,913 5672 54 3,759 14,038
Pension liability adjustment (27,737) (27 .445) (259) 292 {15.230)
Unrealized gains (losses) on markelable securities 840 1,007 10 257 3078

Note

Centain amounts in the consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2008 have been reclassified to

confirm to the presentation in the consoclidated financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2008.

NEC Electronics’ Consolidated Financial Results for the First Quarter Ended June 30, 2008
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2. Condensed Consolidated Quarterly Statements of
Operations

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Year Ended
June 30, 2007 June 30, 2008 March 31, 2008

% of Net % of Nel % of Nei

Million Yen Sales | MillionYen  Million USD Sales Milion Yen Sales

Net sales 173,573 100.0 | 166,282 1,569 100.0 687,745 100.0

Cost of sales 125,927 725 | 117,986 1,113 710 485 683 70.6

Research and development 29,344 16.9 26,445 250 15.9 112,300 16.3

23::“"‘,353:;‘\?;3; 32?15.33 20,529 119 | 20,1150 190 121 || 84668 124

Operating income {loss) (2,227) {1.3) 1,701 16 1.0 5,094 0.7

Non-operating income 3,667 2.1 1,075 10 0.7 6,053 0.9
Interest and dividends income 495 513 5 2,152
Other , 3,172 562 5 3,901

Non-operating expense 1,003 0.5 2497 23 1.5 14,399 2.1
Interest expense 228 116 1 741
Cther 775 2,381 22 13,658

Income (loss) before income taxes 437 0.3 279 3 02 (3,252} (0.5)

Provision for income taxes 1,579 09 1,563 14 1.0 12,285 1.8

of consoldaed subsidaris ©) (1) 59 toooofl st 00

o ge ot aiated (283)  (0.1) 2 0 0.0 @07)  (00)

Net Loss {1,326) (0.8) (1.317) {(12) (0.8) (15,995) {2.3)

Notes

1. The consolidated financial statements of NEC Electronics are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, or U.S, GAAP.
2. The figures for operating income (loss) shown above represent net sales minus the cost of sales, research and

developmenl expenses, and selling, general and administrative expenses.
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3. Condensed Consolidated Quarterly Statements of Change in
Shareholders’ Equity

Three Months Ended June 30, 2007

Accumulated
Three Months Ended other
June 30,2007 Common | Additional paid-in comprehensive| Treasury
stock capital Accumulated defict] income (loss) stock Total
Miltion Million Melion Miltion Million Mi#on
Yen Yan Yen Yen Yen Yan
Baknce at beginning of year 85,955 281,039 (98.901) (3,017) (8} 265,068
Compensation expense for stock options ] 9
Comprehensive income (loss)
Net loss {1,326} (1.326)
COther comprehensive ncome (loss), net of tax
Foreign currency translation adustments 3,537 3,537
Pension liabilty adjustment 707 707
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable
securities 660 660
Comprehensive income (loss) 3,578
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost (1) (4}
Balance at end of the period 85,955 281,048 (100,227} 1,887 (9} 268,654
Three Months Ended June 30, 2008
Accumulated
Three Months Ended other
June 30,2008 Common | Additional paid-n comprehensive] Treasury
stock capital ,Accumulated deficit| income {loss) stock Total
Million  Million| Mifion  Millio Milion  MiZon, Mition Mitkor] Milion Milliony Milon  Milion
Yen USD Yan  USD Yen usD ven USD| van USD) Yen  USD)
Balance at beginning of year 85,955 811 281,073 2,652} (114,896) (1,085} (24,984} (236} (10) (O} 227,138 2 142
Compansation expense for stock options 8 0 8 0
Comprehensive income (loss)
Net loss (1,317) (12) (1.317) (12
Other comprehensive incame (loss), net of tax
Foreign curency translation adjustments 3,759 36 3,759 36
Pension liabikty adjustment 292 3 202 3
Lhrea.l!zed gains (losses) on marketable 257 2 257 )
securities
Comprehensive income {loss) 2,991 29
Balance at end of the period 85,955 811 281,081 2,652 (116,213) {1.097) (20,676} (1950 (10) (0N 230,137 2,171
Year Ended March 31, 2008
Accumuated
Year Ended aother
March 31, 2008 Common | Additional paid-in comprehensive| Treasury
stock capital IAccumulated deficit) income (loss) siock Total
Million Mitan Milion Million Wilkon Milion
Yen Yen Yen Yan Yan ven
Balance at beginning of year 85,955 281,039 (88.901) _(3,017) {8) 265,068
Compansation expense for stock options 34 34
Comprehensive income (loss)
Net boss (15,995) {15,995)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Foreign currency translation adjustments (8.589) {8.589)
Pension liabiity adjustment (11,800) {11,800)
Lhrea}!?zed gains (losses) on marketable (1.578) (1.578)
securities
Compr ehensive income {loss) (37.962)
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost (2) (2)
Balance atend of the period 85,955 281,073 {114,896) (24,984) {10} 227,138

NEC Electronics’ Consolidated Financial Results for the First Quarter Ended June 30, 2008
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4. Condensed Consolidated Quartérly Statements of Cash
Flows

Three Months Ended]  Three Menths Ended Increase Year Ended
June 30, 2007 June 30, 2008 (decrease March 31, 2008
Million Yen Milllon Yen Million USD Million Yen Milion Yen

l.  Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss (1,326) (1,317} {(12) g {15,895}

Adjustments to reconcile net loss {0 net cash
provided by operating aclivities

Depreciation and amortization 17,692 15,947 150 (1.745) 75,067
(Increase) decrease in notes and accounts receivable R (1,337) 589 & 1928 (3,710}
(Increase) decrease in inventories 73 (2529) (24) (2.602) 856
Increase {decrease) in notes and accounts payable (6,859) (2,665) (25) 4,194 {17,309)
Other, net (6,782) (5.834) {55) 948 4,353
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,481 4,191 40 2,730 43,262
Il. Cash flows from investing adtivities
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 782 189 2 (593) 20,653
Additions to property, plant and equipment (14,406) {10,497) (99) 3909 (62,188)
(Increass) decrease in loans receivable 1 - - (1) (2}
Other, net 6,290 (560} {6) (6,850 3,768
Net cash used in investing activities (7.333) (10,868} {103) (3,535) (37,769}
Free cash flows (1+11) (5.872) (6,677) (63) (805) 5,493

lll. Cash flows from financing activities

MNet repayments of borrowings {2,918) (804} {8) 2,024 {20,456)
Other, net {679) (648) {7 3 {2,529)
Net cash used n financing activities (3.597) (1,542} (15) 2,055 (22,985)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1,446 1,745 17 299 {2,408)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (8.023) (6.474) 61) 1,549 (19,200)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 185,372 165,472 1,561 (19,800) 185,372
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 177,349 158,998 1,500 (18,351) 165,472
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5. Segment Information

Breakdown of Net Sales by Market

Application

“THEe Menms
Ended Three Months Ended Year Ended
June 30, 2007 June 30, 2008 Increase (decrease) March 31, 2008
Milion

Million Yen % Totd | Mikion Yen USD  %Tomal | Milion Yen % Change Miltion Yen % Total

Communications 20,601 1.8 16,379 155 9.9 (4,312) (20.8) 70,350 102
Computing and peripherals 29,534 17.0 29,986 283 18.0 452 1.5 119,352 17.4
Consumer electronics 33,048 19.0 32,135 303 19.3 (913} (2.8) 134,546 196
Automotive and industrial 27428 15.8 29,804 281 17.9 2,376 8.7 113,320 16.5
Muiti-market ICs 22,579 13.0 21,037 198 12.7 (1,542} 6.8) 89,643 13.0
Discrete, optical, and microwave devices | 31,710 184 29,831 282 17.9 (1,879) {5.9) 126,064 18.3
Semiconducter total 164,990 951 | 159,172 1,502 957 (5.818) (3.5) 653,275 850
Cther 8583 49 7110 67 a3 | (43 (17.2) 34,470 5.0
Total 173,573 1000 | 166,282 1,569 100.0 (7.291) (4.2 687,745 1000

(Reference) Breakdown of Net Sales by Platform

In addition to reporting sales by market application, NEC Electronics also reports sales by platform.

Three Monts
Ended Threa Months Ended Year Ended
June 30, 2007 June 30, 2008 Increase (decrease) March 31, 2008
Million
Million Yen % Total Milion Yen uso % Total Miliion Yen % Change Million Yen % Tola
S0C platform 63,630 36.7 63278 597 38.1 (352) (0.6) 251,295 36.5
MCU platform 44,354 256 44 611 421 26.8 257 0.6 180,113 26.2
Discrete and IC 57,008 32.8 51,283 484 30.8 {5,723) (10.0) 221,867 323
Semiconductor total 164,990 951 | 159,172 1,502 95.7 (5.818) {3.5) 653,275 950
Other 8,583 49 7,110 67 4.3 (1,473) (17.2) 34,470 50
Total 173573 1000 | 166,282 1,568 100.0 {7.201) (4.2) 687,745 100.0

Note: System-on-Chip (SoC) Platform: application specific integrated circuits (ASIC), application specific standard products (ASSP),

memory

Microcomputer {MCU). Platform: microcontrollers, car audio controllers

Discrete and [C: display drivers, analog ICs, discrete, optical and microwave devices

Breakdown of Net Sales by Region

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Increase Year Ended

June 30, 2007 June 30, 2008 {decrease) March 31, 2008

Million Yen % of Total Million Yen Million USD % of Total | % Changse Million Yen % of Total
Japan 93,193 53.7 89,085 840 53.5 (4.4) 370,238 53.8
United States of America 15,188 8.7 12,258 116 7.4 {19.3) 58,256 85
Europe 22,682 13.1 22,395 211 13.5 (1.3) 95,936 140
Asia 42,510 245 42,543 402 25.6 0.1 163,315 237
Totat 173,573 100.0 | 166,282 1,569 100.0 4.2) 687,745  100.0
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Breakdown of Profit / Loss by Region

Three Months Ended

Three Months Ended increase Year Ended

June 30, 2007 June 30, 2008 (decrease)] | March 31, 2008

Millien Yen % of Total Million Yen Milion USD % of Total Million Yen Million Yen % of Total
Japan (4,4686) — {1,395) {13) - 3,071 (9,386) —_
United States of America (235) - {5) {0) - 230 755 —_—
Europe 188 -- 333 3 -- 135 2,023 -
Asia 2,276 —— 2,768 26 - 492 11,702 -
Total! (2,227) _ 1,701 16 - 3,928 5,004 -

6. Notes on Assumption for Going Concern

None
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Summary of Consolidated Financial Results

Three Months Ended
June 30, 2007

Three Months Ended
June 30, 2008

Increase (Decrease)

% of % of
Bilion Yen  Net Sales Bilion Yen  Million USD  Net Sales Bilion Yan % Change
Net sales 1736 1000 166.3 1,569 1000 (7.3) (4.2)
Sales from semiconductors 165.0 159.2 1,502 (5.8) (3.5)
Operating income (loss) (2.2) (1.3) 1.7 16 1.0 39 -
Income before income taxes 0.4 0.3 0.3 3 02 (0.2) (36.2)
Net loss (1.3) {0.8) (1.3) (12) (0.8) 0.0 -
Net loss per share of
common stock: Yen Yen uso Yen % Change
Basic (10.74) (10.66) (0.10) 0.08 —
Diluted {10.74) (10.66) {0.10) 0.08 -
Bilion Yan Bilion Yen  Million USD Bilion Yen % Change
Capital expenditures 12.3 9.3 87 (3.0) (24.9)
Depreciation and amortization 17.7 15.9 150 (1.7} (9.9)
R&D expenses 29.3 26.4 250 (2.9) 9.9)
Yen Yen
Exchange rate (USD) 19 103
Exchange rate (Euro) 160 160
March 31, 2008 June 30, 2008 Increase (Decrease) | | June 30, 2007
Billon Yen Billon Yen  Million USD Bilion Yen % Change Billion Yen
Total assets 616.3 621.2 5,860 49 08 690.0
Shareholders’ equity 2271 230.1 2,171 3.0 13 268.7
Persons Persans Parsons % Change Persons
Number of employees 23,110 23,353 243 1.4 24,188

Notes

1. U.S. dollar amounts are translated from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥106=U.S.$1.

2. Allfigures are rounded to the nearest 100 million yen.

3. The consolidated financial statements of NEC Electronics are prepared in accordance with accounting principfes
generally accepled in the United States, or U.S. GAAP.

4. The figures for operating income {loss) shown above represent nel sales minus the cost of sales, research and
development expenses, and selling, general and administrative expenses.

5. Net loss per share of common stock is calculated based on Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (*SFAS™)
No.128, “Earnings per share’,

6. The figures for shareholders’ equity are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States, or U.S. GAAP,

7. The quarterly review by the external auditor for financial information in this fiscal result is not completed. After
release of the financial result, subsequent event or quarterly review by the external auditor could change financial
information. In such a case, corrected information will be promptly press released.

NEC Electronics’ Consolidated Financial Results for the First Quarter Ended June 30, 2008
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Forward-Looking Statements

The statements in this press release with respect to the plans, strategies and financial outlook of
NEC Electronics and its consolidated subsidiaries (collectively “NEC Electronics”) are forward-
looking statements involving risks and uncertainties. We caution you in advance that actual results
may differ materially from such forward-looking statements due to several important factors
including, but not limited to, general economic conditions in our markets, which are primarily Japan,
North America, Asia, and Europe; demand for, and competitive pricing pressure on, products and
services in the marketplace; ability to continue to win acceptance of products and services in these
highly competitive markets; and fluctuations in currency exchange rates, particularly between the
yen and the U.S. dollar. Among other factors, downturn of the world economy; deteriorating
financial conditions in world markets, or deterioration in domestic and overseas stock markets, may
cause actual results to differ from the projected results forecast.

About NEC Electronics

NEC Electronics Corporation (TSE: 6723) specializes in semiconductor products encompassing
advanced technology solutions for the high-end computing and broadband networking markets;
system solutions for the mobile handset, PC peripheral, automotive and digital consumer markets;
and multi-market solutions for a wide range of customer applications. NEC Electronics Corporation
has subsidiaries worldwide including NEC Electronics America, Inc. (www.am.necel.com) and NEC
Electronics (Europe) GmbH {(www.eu.necel.com}. More information about NEC Electronics
worldwide can be found at www.necel.com.

H#H#
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2008
Compared with the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007 )

Management's discussion and analysis covers consolidated financial statements that are prepared in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).
Certain discussions regarding future events contained in this section reflect management’s judgments
as of March 31, 2008, the balance sheet date of the year under review.

NEC Electronics Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries (*NEC Electronics,” “we,” “our,” or
“us”) are leading integrated providers of system-level semiconductor solutions for electronic products
and systems across a variety of key markets in the communications, computing and peripherals, con-
sumer electronics, and automotive and industrial sectors. NEC Electronics Corporation (“the Company™)
began semiconductor business operations in 1956, and our cumulative expertise and technical capa-
bilities allow us to offer our customers a broad array of solutions, ranging from general-purpose semi-
conductors to custom semiconductors.

The Company was established on November 1, 2002 as a wholly owned subsidiary of NEC Cerporation
(“NEC"), the result of a separation by new incorporation (shinsetsu bunkatsu) under the corporate sepa-
ration (kaisha bunkatsu) provisions of the former Japanese Commercial Code.

Pursuant to NEC's separation plan, substantially all of NEC's semiconductor business operations and
related assets and liabilities, excluding those related to the general-purpose DRAM business, were
transferred to the Company, at historical cost, in exchange for the issuance to NEC of 100,000,000
shares. At the time of the Company’s initial public offering on July 24, 2003, the Company issued
23,500,000 shares and NEC sold 10,500,000 shares. NEC also sold an additional 3,000,000 shares
in connection with such initial public offering. As a result, and as of March 31, 2008, NEC beneficially
owns 70.0% of the Company's issued shares, including shares placed in the retirement benefit trust.

Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported value of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period presented. NEC Electronics evaluates its estimates and assumptions cn an
ongoing basis, and bases those estimates and assumptions on historicat experience and on various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable at the time the estimates and assumptions are made.
Actual results may differ from these estimates and assumptions.

The Company believes when the following significant accounting policies are used, our estimates and
assumptions could have a significant impact on our consoclidated financial statements:
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
NEC Electronics provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the historical write-off ratio for
receivables and any specific doubtful accounts based on a case-by-case determination of collectibility.
On the basis of information currently available, we consider the allowance for doubtful accounts to be
adequate. However, changes in the underlying financial position of our customers, resuiting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, may require additional provisions to this allowance.
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inventories

NEC Electronics analyzes all inventories, including slow-moving and obsolete inventory, and writes down
such inventories to their estimated market value hased on assumptions about future demand and
market conditions.

If future demand and market conditions are less favorable than those projected, additional inventory
write-downs may be required.

Investments
NEC Electronics holds investments with a long-range perspective to enhance partnerships with respect
to such purposes as reinforcing sales framework, joint development, and technical collaboration.

These investments consist of marketable equity securities, and the stock of companies that are not
publicly traded for which fair values are practically difficult to reasonably estimate. Marketable equity
securities and nonpublic companies' stocks are included in marketable securities and other and stated
at fair value and at cost, respectively.

When a decline in the value of investments is deemed to be otherthan-temporary, NEC Electronics
recognizes an impairment loss to the extent of the decline. In determining if and when such a decline in
value is otherthan-temporary, we evaluate market conditions, trends of earnings, significance of the
decline, the duration of the decline, and other key measures. There were no significant gross unrealized
holding losses in marketable securities as of March 31, 2008. The Company also believes that there is
no impairment in investments, other as of March 31, 2008.

Future adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating results by the companies in which we
have invested could result in losses, or an inability to recover the carrying value of the investments that
is not reflected in the current carrying vatue of an investment, possibly requiring an impairment charge
in the future.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets to be held and used, including license fees and other intangibles, are evaluated for
impairment using an estimate of undiscounted cash flows whenever events or changes in ¢ircum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If the estimate of
undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, an impairment loss is
recorded based on the fair value of the assets.

Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sales are evaluated at the lower of carrying amount or fair
value less cost to sell.

We believe that there were no long-lived assets that required the recording of an impairment loss at
March 31, 2008. Changes in future technology trends or strategy may cause an impairment of long-
lived assets.

Deferred Tax Assels

NEC Electronics has recorded deferred tax assets resulting on deductible temporary differences and
net operating loss carryforwards, both of which will reduce taxable income in the future. We setup a
valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets to an amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

We evaluate the necessity of a valuation allowance for each company based on the information cur-
rently available, such as historical income performance, estimates of future taxable income, and esti-
mates of the timing of when temporary differences will reverse. As a result, based on estimates of the
levels of future taxable income and other factors carried out at the Company, domestic subsidiaries,
and its American subsidiary, NEC Electronics America, Inc., we recorded a valuation allowance of
¥115.1 hillion ($1,151 million) at March 31, 2008.
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Pension and Severance Plans

NEC Electronics recorded pension and severance costs and liabilities that are calculated from actuarial
valuations. Changes in the related pension and severance costs and liabilities may occur in the future
due to changes in assumptions such as the discount rate, the rate of increase in future compensation
level and the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, in addition to changes in the number of
employees covered. Assumptions are evaluated at least annually; if circumstances change we change
these assumptions. We amortize variations in the assumptions or actual results that differ from the
assumptions over the average remaining service period of employees.

NEC Electronics applied 2.5% for the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008. To determine the expected long-term rate of return on plan
assets, we consider current and expected asset allocations, as well as historical and expected long-
term rates of return on various categories of plan assets.

The assumed discount rate as of March 31, 2008 was 2.5%.

Contingent Liabllitles

NEC Electronics is a defendant in several lawsuits and other litigation in which compensation for dam-
ages is being sought. At present, we have booked allowances to cover losses associated with these
actions in such cases where these losses are reasonably estimable. Currently, no allowances have
been made with respect to cases in which such losses cannot be reasonably estimated.

Results of Operations .

Net Sales
Net sales decreased ¥4.5 billion, or 0.7%, to ¥687.7 billion ($6,877 millicn) for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008, compared to net sales of ¥692.3 billion for the previous fiscal year. Although sales of
semiconductors for consumer electronics and automotive and industrial applications were higher than
the previous fiscal year, sales of semiconductors for communications applications were down on the
previous fiscal year.

Our net sales by market application were as follows:
Communications
Net sales of semiconductors for communications applications decreased ¥29.3 billion, or 29.4%, to
¥70.4 billion ($704 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, from ¥99.6 billion for the previ-
ous fiscal year. Sales of semiconductors for mobile phones decreased year on year as a result of a
sharp drop in sales of LCD driver ICs and memory, brought about by lower unit sales as well as price
declines.
Computing and Peripherals
Net sales of semiconductors for computing and peripherals applications decreased ¥4.4 billion, or
3.5%, to ¥1.19.4 biliion ($1,194 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, from ¥123.7 billion
for the previous fiscal year. Sales of LCD driver ICs for LCD televisions and computer monitors were
hoosted by an increase in market demand. This growth was outweighed, however, by a large drop in
sales of semiconductors for printers and other factors, causing sales of semiconductors for PC periph-
erals to fall year on year.
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Consumer Electronics
Net sales of semiconductors for consumer electronics applications increased ¥13.8 billion, or 11.4%,
to ¥134.5 billion {$1,345 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, from ¥120.8 billion for the
previous fiscal year. Although sales of semiconductors for digital cameras declined year on year, sales
of semiconductors for game consoles and digital televisions increased. The ramp up of shipments of
semiconductors for blue taser DVD also helped spur strong year-on-year growth.
Automotive and Industrial
Net sales of semiconductors for automotive and industrial applications increased ¥7.2 billion, or 6.8%,
to ¥113.3 hillion ($1,133 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, from ¥106.1 billion for the
previous fiscal year. Although sales of semiconductors for industrial equipment declined, sales of auto-
motive semiconductors increased year on year, benefiting from the increase in electronic systems in
vehicle and growth in our share of the automotive microcontroller market in Japan and Europe.
Multl-market ICs
Net sales of multi-market ICs increased ¥0.7 billion, or 0.8%, to ¥89.6 billion ($896 million) for the ‘
fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, from ¥89.0 billion for the previous fiscal year. This growth largely i
reflected higher sales of general-purpose microcontrollers year on year.
Discrete, Optical and Microwave Devices
Net sales of discrete, optical and microwave devices increased ¥5.5 billion, or 4.6%, to ¥126.1 hillion
{$1.261 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, from ¥120.6 billion for the previous fiscal
year. The increase was mainly due to higher sales of discrete semiconductors and compound semicon-
ductors year on year.
Other
QOther sales mainly consist of sales subsidiaries’ resale of color LCD panels and other non-semiconductor
products and services. Our other sales increased ¥1.9 billion, or 5.9%, to ¥34.5 billion {$345 million)
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, from ¥32.5 billion for the previous fiscal year.

The business operations in this category are not core operations.
Cost of Sales
Cost of sales decreased ¥16.4 billion, or 3.3%, to ¥485,7 billion ($4,857 million) for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2008, from ¥502.1 billion for the previous fiscal year. Measures were enacted to
enhance productivity and cost efficiency, reducing the cost of sales as a percentage of net sales from
72.5% to 70.6%.
Research and Development Expenses
Research and development (“R&D") expenses decreased ¥19.5 billion, or 14.8%, to ¥112.3 billion
{$1,123 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, from ¥131.8 billion for the previous fiscal
year. The decrease was primarily a result of measures to control R&D expenses under the Company’'s
policy of selection and focus. As a percentage of net sales, R&D expenses decreased from 19.0% for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to 16.3%. For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008,
R&D expenses included net fees of ¥3.2 billion and ¥4.2 billion ($42 million), respectively, in connec-
tion with research provided by NEC's laboratories.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased ¥2.3 billion, or 2.7%, to ¥84.7 biltion {$847
million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, from ¥87.0 billion for the previous fiscal year. As a
percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased from 12.6% for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to 12.3%.
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Provision for Income Taxes
NEC Electronics’ loss before income taxes, provision for income taxes, and effective tax rate for the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

INCOME (LOSS)
BEFORE
INCOME TAXES Millions of
(¥ bitlion) Billions of yen U.S. dollars
50 Year ended March 31 2007 2008 2008
Income (l0ss) before INCOME LAXES ««rrerrererssmmrmenii ¥(35.4) ¥(3.3) $(33)
Provision for income taxes
25 Current ...................................................................................... 21 3'9 39
DEfErrerl -+ ooererrerrrrrrriaini i s s s 3.0 8.4 84
Effective tax rate (%) ................................................................. J— — —
0 Minorlty Interest in Income of Consolldated Subsidiaries
NEC Electronics recorded minority interest in income of a consolidated subsidiary in China of ¥0.3
billion ($3 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, compared to minority interest in income of
s ¥(.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007,
Net Loss
NEC Electronics recorded a net loss of ¥16.0 billion ($160 million), representing minus 2.3% of net

sales, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, compared to a net loss of ¥41.5 billion for the previ-
ous fiscal year.

Geographical Segment Analysis

Our net sales on a geographic basis were as follows:
NET INCOME (LOSS}  Japan
Net sales in Japan decreased ¥7.1 billion, or 1.9%, to ¥370.2 billion {$3,702 miilion) for the fiscal year
(¥ billion} ended March 31, 2008, from ¥377.3 billion for the previous fiscal year. Aithough there was an increase
50 in sales of semiconductors for game consoles and digital televisions, this was outweighed by lower

-50
04 05 06 07 08

Years ended March 31

sales of LCD driver ICs for mobile phones, and semiconductors for printers, digital cameras.
25 United States of America
Net sales in the United States of America decreased ¥9.2 billion, or 13.6%, to ¥58.3 billion ($583
million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, from ¥67.5 billion for the previous fiscal year. The
decrease was primarily due to a decline in sales of system memory for mohile phones and semicon-
ductors for game consoles.
-25 Europe
Net sales in Europe increased ¥7.0 billion, or 7.9%, to ¥95.9 billion ($959 million) for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2008, from ¥88.9 billion for the previous fiscal year. The increase was primarily due
to higher sales of semiconductors for automobiles and general-purpose microcontrollers.
Asia _
Net sales in Asia, excluding Japan, increased ¥4.7 billion, or 3.0%, to ¥163.3 billion ($1,633 million)
|| for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, from ¥158.6 billion for the previous fiscal year. The increase

=100 04 05 06 07 08 was primarily due to growth in sales of products such as general-purpose microcontrollers, and discrete

Years ended March 31 semiconductors mainly for battery-operated equipment.
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Seasonality

NEC Electronics' main customers for semiconductor products are manufacturers of consumer
electronic products.

Our net sales are generally higher from July through December compared to the period from lanuary
through June. This is due to the higher volume of product sales to customers that manufacture con-
sumer products for the year-end holiday season.

Effect of Ch#nge in Exchange Rates on Foreign Currency

The average annual exchange rate of the Japanese yen against the U.S. dollar during the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2008 was higher compared to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. This decreased
the yen-denominated amount of U.S. dollar-denominated sales, thereby contributing to decreased earn-
ings., From time to time, we enter into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to reduce exposure
to market risks from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange. We recorded a net foreign exchange
loss of ¥1.1 hillion ($11 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. Assets and liabilities of
foreign subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rate in effect on the balance
sheet date. Revenue and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the fiscal year.
Adjustments resulting from the translation are accumulated and recorded in “accumulated other com-
prehensive income {loss)” in the consolidated balance sheets,

For details, see note 2 to our consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity and iCapital Resources
NEC Electronics’ financial policy is to secure adequate liquidity and capital resources for its operations
and to maintain the strength of its balance sheet. In order to secure stable longterm capital resources,
the Company issued convertible bond notes with share acquisition rights (zero coupon unsecured yen
convertible bonds due 2011) on May 27, 2004 and raised ¥110.0 billion. The bond is subject to cer-
tain covenants. Under the conditions of the covenants, during a certain period, bondholders have the
right to claim conversion if the stock price exceeds 110% or more of the conversion price of ¥9,860
($99), as of March 31, 2008. In addition, the bond carries a call option that gives the Company the
right to call the bond at the principal amount after May 27, 2008, if the Company’s stock price exceeds
130% or more of the conversion price for 30 consecutive trading days. As of March 31, 2008, our total
amount of long-term debt was ¥0.6 billion ($6 million) and the outstanding balance of convertible
bonds was ¥110.0 billion {$1,100 million}. In addition, we alse have a revolving credit facility under
which an aggregate of up to ¥20.0 billion ($200 million) in shortterm loans is available to meet unfore-
seen shortterm financing needs.

As of March 31, 2008, the total amount of interest-bearing debt, including convertible bonds, borrow-
ings, and obligations under certain capital leases, was ¥116.6 billion ($1,166 million). As of March 31,
2008, we had ¥165.5 billion ($1,655 million) in cash and cash equivalents to maintain liquidity. We
believe that the cash and cash equivalents, the avallability of short-term credit facilities, and the Com-
pany's cash flows from operations, are sufficient to meet its current cash requirements, including capi-
tal expenditures and debt service, for the foreseeable future. In order to facilitate access to global
capital markets, the Company has obtained credit ratings from Rating and Investment Information, Inc.
(R&!), one of Japan's major credit rating agencies. As of March 31, 2008, the Company's senior long-
term credit and current short-term debt ratings from R&| are BBB+ and a-2, respectively.
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Financial Position

Total Assets and Shareholders’ Equity

Total assets at March 31, 2008 totaled ¥616.3 billion ($6,163 million), a ¥79.6 billion decrease from
¥695.9 billion at March 31, 2007. This was mainly due to a ¥37.1 billion decrease in property, plant
and equipment due to lower capital expenditures, and depreciation and others, as well as a ¥19.9
hillion decrease in ¢cash and cash equivalents for the repayment of debt, and a significant decline in
shareholders’ equity from consclidated net loss.

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased ¥23.5 billion to ¥43.3 billion ($433 million) for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, from ¥66.7 billion for the previous fiscal year. Despite posting con-
solidated net loss and a decrease in accounts payable, depreciation and amortization in the amount of
¥75.1 billion ($751 million) resulted in a net cash inflow.

Net cash used in investing activities decreased ¥40.7 billion to ¥37.8 billion {$378 million) for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, from ¥78.5 billion for the previous fiscal year. Although proceeds
from the transfer of the photomask business resulted in cash inflows, this was partially offset by pay-
ments for the purchase of property, plant and equipment in the amount of ¥62.2 billion {$622 million).

Net cash used in financing activities was ¥23.0 billion {$230 million) for the fiscal year ended March
31, 2008, an increase of ¥7.7 billion from ¥15.3 billion for the previous fiscal year, mainly as a result
of repayment of debt.

Capital Expenditures

NEC Electronics’ capital expenditures for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008 were
¥105.9 hillion and ¥56.1 hillion ($561 million), respectively. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008,
capital expenditures were largely allocated to the upgrade and expansion of our 300mm wafer line, and
assembly and testing lines.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

NEC Electronics securitizes receivables by selling certain trade receivables to Special Purpose Entities
(“SPEs"} and others without recourse from time to time. The purpose of these securitization transac-
tions is to enhance asset efficiency. NEC Electronics services, administers and collects the securitized
trade receivables on behalf of the SPEs and others. We received proceeds from securitization transac-
tions of ¥2.0 billion ($20 million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. No such proceeds were
recorded for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.

NEC Electronics has also sold portions of its machinery and equipment to leasing companies and 10
certain SPEs, leasing them back for periods of less than five years, for the purpose of eliminating risks
associated with a decline in the value of obsolete production facilities, as well as stabilizing cash flows.
These transactions are treated as operating leases for accounting purposes. The amount of machinery
and equipment sold for lease back to NEC Electronics in the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 and
2008 were ¥38.6 billion and ¥18.6 billion ($186 million), respectively.
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Risk Factors{ ‘

NEC Electronics recognizes the following as some of the most significant risk factors faced in its
business operations.

Impact of Market Fluctuations

Although NEC Electronics carefully monitors changes in market conditions, it is difficult to compietely
avoid the impact of market fluctuations due to economic cycles in countries around the world and
changes in the demand for end products. Market downturns, therefore, could lead to sales declines, as
well as lower fab utilization rates which may in turn result in diminished cost ratios, ultimately leading
to a significant deterioration in profits.

Foreign Currency Fluctuations

The operating results and financial position of NEC Electronics are affected by fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange markets. We take various measures to avert or reduce risks relating to fluctuations
in the foreign currency exchange markets, such as forward exchange contracts, However, these fluctua-
tions may impact the yen value of assets and liabilities arising from business transactions in foreign
currencies, as well as the costs and sales denominated in foreign currencies. In addition, conversicn of
the financial statements of the Company's overseas subsidiaries into Japanese yen, which is the
reporting currency of NEC Electronics, may also affect our assets and liabilities, as well as earnings
and expenses.

Natural Disasters

Natural disasters such as earthquakes, typhoons, and floods, as well as accidents, acts of terror and
other factors beyond the control of NEC Electronics, could severely damage semiconductor manufactur-
ing facilities and other facilities. NEC Electronics owns facilities in areas where earthquakes occur at a
frequency higher than the global average. Consequently, the effects of earthquakes and other events
could force a halt to manufacturing and other operations. We are insured against losses and damages
relating to earthquakes, however, the insurance may be unable to cover all the losses and damages if
the earthquake is extraordinarily severe.

Competition

The semiconductor industry is extremely competitive, and NEC Electronics is exposed to fierce competi-
tion from rival companies around the world in areas such as product performance, structure, pricing
and quality. To maintain competitiveness, we take various measures including development of ieading
edge technologies, standardizing design, and cost reduction, but in the event that we are nct competi-
tive, our market share may decline, which may negatively impact the financial results, Price competition
for the purpose of maintaining market share may also lead to sharp declines in the market price of our
products. When this cannot be offset by cost reductions, our gross profit margin ratio may decline.
Product Defects, Anomalies and Malfunctions

Although NEC Electronics makes an effort to improve the quality of semiconductor products and related
software, they may contain defects, anomalies or malfunctions that are undetectable at the time of ship-
ment due to increased sophistication of technologies and diversity of ways in which our products are
used by customers. These defects, anomalies or malfunctions could be discovered after our products
are embedded in customers' end products, resulting in the return or exchange of our products, claims
for compensatory damages, or discontinuation of the use of our products, which could negatively impact
the profits and operating results. To prepare for such events, NEC Electronics has product liability insur-
ance and recall insurance, but it is not guaranteed that the full costs of reimbursements would be cov-
ered by these.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

NEC Electronics has recorded tangible fixed assets and many other long-lived assets in its consolidated
balance sheet, and periodically reviews whether it will be able to recover the recorded residual value of
these assets in the form of future cash flows. If these assets do not generate sufficient cash flows, we
may be forced to recognize an impairment in their value.

Information Management

NEC Electronics has in its possession a great deal of confidential information relating to its business
activities. While such confidential information is managed according to internal regulations specifically
designed for that purpose, there is always the risk that information may leak due to unforeseen circum-
stances. Should such an event occur, there is a likelihood that customer confidence and social trust
would deteriorate, resulting in a negative effect on our performance.

Environmental Factors

NEC Electronics strives to decrease its environmental impact in accordance with the “NEC Electronics
Environmental Policy,” with respect to diversified and complex environmental issues such as global
warming, air pollution, industrial waste, tightening of hazardous substance regulation, and soil pollu-
tion. There is the possibility that, regardless of whether or not there is negligence in its pursuit of busi-
ness activities, NEC Electronics could bear legal or social responsibility for environmental problems.
Should such an event occur, the burden of expenses for resolution could potentially be high, and we
could suffer an erosion of social trust.

Legal Issues

NEC Electronics’ products utilize a wide range of technologies, and it is possible that a third party may
claim that certain of our technologies infringe upon its intellectual property rights. In the event of such
claims, we may incur substantial costs related to legal actions and other expenses in our defense and/
or that of our customers. Depending on the cutcome of these claims, we could be ordered to pay sub-
stantial amounts in damages or be forced to cease use of such technology due to the demand for exces-
sive license fees which are not ecenomically feasible.

Our operations are subject to various laws and regulations in Japan and other countries around the
waorld, pertaining to the environment, safety, fair business practices and other matters. We strive to
comply fully with these laws and regulations. However, in the event of a lawsuit or legal proceeding
based on violations of such laws and regulations, a ruling against us could negatively impact our earn-
ings and operating results.

NEC Electronics America, Inc. has resolved by settlement the class action civil antitrust lawsuits from
direct purchasers {customers who had directly purchased DRAM from NEC Electronics in the past), but
it is still in litigation, or in settlement negotiations along with NEC, with several customers who have
opted out of such class action lawsuits. NEC Electronics America has also been named as one of the
defendants in numerous class action civil lawsuits from indirect purchasers (customers who had pur-
chased products containing DRAM), as well as a number of antitrust lawsuits filed by the Attorneys
General of numerous states in the U.S.
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Additionally, NEC Electronics, together with NEC, is fully cooperating with the European Commission
in its investigation of potential violations of European competition laws in the DRAM industry,

Furthermore, NEC Electronics is also subject to (1) investigations in connection with potentjal antj-
trust violations in the SRAM industry being conducted by the U.S. Department of Justice and the Euro-
pean Commissicn, (2) investigations in connection with potential antitrust violations in the
semiconductor industry (incfuding the SRAM industry) by the Korea Fair Trade Commission, as well as
(3) investigations by the U.S. Department of Justice, the European Commission, the Korea Fair Trade
Commission, and the Competition Bureau of Canada in connection with potential antitrust violations in
the thinfilm transistor liquid crystal display (TFT-LCD) industry. Following the initiation of investigations
by the U.S. Department of justice into the SRAM and TFT-LCD industries, numerous ¢lass action civil
antitrust lawsuits seeking damages for alleged antitrust violations in the SRAM industry have been
brought against NEC Electronics America and NEC Electronics Corporation in the United States and
elsewhere, and numerous class action civil antitrust lawsuits seeking damages for alleged antitrust
violations in the TFT-LCD industry have been brought against NEC Electronics America in the United
States and elsewhere.

Although the outcome of the aforementioned investigations, antitrust lawsuits and settlement negotia-
tions is not known at this time, NEC Electronics, in consultation with NEC, has recorded the probable and
reasonably estimable losses for the U.S. DRAM civil lawsuits as approximately ¥2.7 billion ($27 million)
for unpaid amounts and unpaid expenses pertaining to civil lawsuits and settlements with customers in
the U.S. In relation to other civil lawsuits and the aforementioned investigations, it is not possible to
determine whether the Company will incur liabilities relating to lawsuits or come under investigation for
other reasons. Furthermore, it is not possible to create reasonable estimates of any incurred expenses or
losses related to the above at the present time.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

NEC Electronics Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
As of March 31, 2007 and 2008

Millions of yen

Thousands of
u.s. dollars_

ASSETS 2007 2008 2008
Current assets:
Cash and cash equiva|ent5 ...................................................................... ¥ 185,372 ¥ 165'472 s 1'654,720
Notes and accounts receivable, trade:
Related Parties <« v 11,793 11,991 119,910
0 1) OO 88,313 84,513 845,130
Allowance for doubtful notes and aceounts ----- - (563) {152) {1,520)
[TIVENTOIEES «+revnremrremnreratnataratirerrer e s e tn s cr s rasrrne s re s es e re e s e s e ne s aan s eans 79,165 75,839 758,390
Deferred taX ASSES «rorrrerrrarriararrrrrsirrara s as et rrar it s r e r e 6,795 899 8,990
Prepaid expenses and other current assets oo 7,331 5,553 55,530
TOLAl CUITENE ASSEES «rrererrrrremr e e arsr e r s st e bt ae b r e e 378,206 344,115 3_441,150_
Investments:
Marketable securities - ovnannnniini 5'997 3'345 33’450
Other:
AFfIliated COMPANIES r+vr v rerartrererrsiine ettt 746 539 5,390
F0 ) aT ] T U PPN 411 681 6,810
7,154 4,565 45,650
Property, plant and equipment:
LAY e tvrermnramnreruranunnsartsnrsrarasur e s e e s erarertr e ey e r g g ety r e e rn e nns 16,849 15,708 157,080
BUILLINZS - ---veeeeemrm ettt 244,852 239,408 2,394,060
Machinery and @QUIPIIENE -+ xx-sresmm e 965,005 931,709 9,317,090
CONSIIUCTION IN PIOEIESS ++rrerrrersrenmsrrsaat ettt s 18,829 21,717 217,170
1,245,535 1,208,540 12,085,400_
ACCUMUIATED EPrECIAtION -« == rsrssertrrrirt sttt i e s (949,304} (949,389) (9,493,890)
296,231 259,151 2,591,510
Other assets:
Deferred tAx ASSELS e rerrearirreranmmtitiiintia s st e rs e e e, 3,892 2,062 20,620
License fees and other intangibles -« o v e 9,357 5471 54,710
0] 1 T A PSP P PP PP 1,046 940 9'400_
14,295 8,473 84,730
¥ 655,886 ¥ 616,304 $ 6,163,040

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.8. dollars

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 2007 2008 2008
Current liabllities:
Short-term borrowings ............................................................................. ¥ 3'609 ¥ 954 s 9‘540
Current DOFtiOﬂ of |0ng_term debt ............................................................. 15'914 619 6'190
Current portion of obligation under capital leases to related parties - 1,080 821 8,210
Notes and accounts payable, trade:
Related Parties < oer eereiemmimi i 31,198 26,188 261,880
OILNET v rrarrrarsrunsrnrrruntannsrasartnsrinarssse st st saas e s sn e in e inarsar s ieasransrerenras 101,269 81,123 811,230
Accounts payable, other and accrued expenses:
Related Parties » serrsueriiiiii i 4,649 4,593 45,930
00T = ST 53,651 53,463 534,630
AcCrued INCOME LAXES +1rirrrtrirrrirtrisiintrionniiiiiisisieisteissisrrisusrsrerisrsrersrsrisinee 2,792 2’049 20,490
Other current liabiliti@s ----«-=---srererarmarreir e e e e 8,798 9,905 99,050
Total current liaDIlItIes « e-srererersrertiriniirir sy ans 222 960 179,715 1,797,150
Long-term liabllitles:
LONBAIMN debt cveveermiemmimtiiiiiiii e 110,634 110,000 1,100,000
Obligation under capital leases 1o related parties: «rvrovarersrririare.. 4,793 4,207 42,070
Accrued pension and SEVErante COStS - i 71,535 74,460 744,600
Deferred tax [ighiliti|s <« srero e 10,847 11,068 110,680
OEE oo e e e s e e 5,214 4,540 45,400
203,023 204,275 2,042,750
Minority shareholders’ equity in consolidated subsldlaries------------coeeeieennene 4,835 5,176 51,760
Commitments and contingent liabilities
Shareholders’ equlty:
Common SEOCK reerrivreier i i e e e 85'955 85‘955 859!550
Authorized — 400,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding — 123,500,000 shares
Additional paid-in capital: -« 281,035 281,073 2,810,730
ACCUMUIALE AEFIGit-- - roeereeererrrirrriaerisarrresiserererarerareraesrarerssasarersrnrerenearns {98,901) (114,896} (1,148,960)
Accumulated other comprehensive iNComMe (I0S8) »ererererarerininninni (3,017) (24,984) {249,840)
Treasury stock, at cost:
2007 — 1,445 SRATES« «+«rertrerrentimuisiiisiiiaiiae s isss e ser s (8)
2008 — 2,030 ShAr@s - rerrrererer ettt et s (10) (100)
265,068 227,138 2,271,380
¥695,886 ¥ 616,304 $ 6,163,040
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

NEC Electronics Carporation and Consalidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008

Thousards of

Millions of yen U.5. dollars
2006 2007 2008 2008
Sales and other income:
NEEL SEIES ++rvvererermrertrtreiiinsiarentiiressrsrarrentens s nsrnrsrersssias ¥645,963 ¥692,280 ¥687,745 $6,877,450
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment and other ---- 1,817 2,548 1,861 18,610
Net gain on business transfer oo — — 2,040 20,400
Interest and dividend iNComMe -« e 1,078 1,929 2,152 21,520
Gain on disposition of investments in securitieg: .- xveveee 1,365 6,436 — —
650,323 703,193 693,798 6,937,980
Costs and expenses:
COSE Of SAIES ~--rmrerrrerrremmremarmtarrraaa e tr e e e r e enaas 477,476 502,086 485,683 4,856,830
Research and development ----vvm v 120,874 131,751 112,300 1,123,000
Selling, general and administrative -« 83,302 87,000 84,668 846,680
ReStructuring Charges s+ «reresesrrieneninerannren i, 1,683 4,192 7,931 79,310
Litigation and settlement exXpense - - 3,413 1,435 —_ _—
Loss on sales or disposal of property,
plant and equipment and other 4,132 8,229 4,634 46,340
|nterest expense .............................................................. 874 698 741 7'410
Net foreign exchange [QSS srrrvrerrnsisurisieinneiosriarerareresiriinniae 519 1'197 1'091 10’910
Loss on investments in securities ----------- e 436 980 2 20
692,709 738,568 697,050 6,970,500 '
LoSs before INCOME tAXES -+ -r-vrrrrrarrrrrrari s inraanenans {42,3886) {35,375) (3,252) (32,520)
Provision for income taxes -------------r e 56,166 5,105 12,285 122,850
Loss before minority interest,
equity In loss of affiliated companies ------coovevenminin, {98,552) {40,480) (15,537) {155,370)
Minority interest in income (loss) of consolidated subsidlaries --- {354) 552 251 2,510
Loss before equity In loss of affiliated companles «-«-++«--veo- (98,198) (41,032) (15,788) (157,880)
Equity In loss of affillated companies- - ererrreiinnnniins — {468) (207) {2,070)
INGE LB corerrrerrrermearerseeraesiarssensrerersrersserararesnnereesresnesseescensens ¥ (98,198) ¥(41,500) ¥(15,995) $ (159,950)
Yen U.S. dollars
2006 2007 2008 2008
Basic net loss per share - ormveeiininie ¥ (795.13) ¥(336.04) ¥(129.52) $ (1.30)
Diluted net 10Ss per share «------------coooommmrmmeimminnaee (795.13) (336.04} (129.52) (1.30)

See notes te consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

NEC Electranics Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008

Millions of yen

Retained Accumulated
Additional earnings other Treasury
Common paldin (Accumulated  comprehensive stock,
stock capital deficit) income (loss) at cost Total
Balance at March 31, 2005 o ¥85,955 ¥276,693 ¥ 40,829 ¥ (9,608} ¥ {6) ¥393,8563
Contribution 10 capita| ...................................................... 8.092 6,092
Transaction UNAer COMMON GONErOl--«w«rr rreerreniromresersinns (1,974) {1,974)
Compensation expense for stock options «voooeevermmminmnaaan 203 203
Comprehensive income (loss):
PLEE BOGG -errnnssrrsrranasssssssnnnss sttt s ist st e e e s st e e s e e e {98,198) {38,198
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments 4,757 4,757
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax 1,243 1,243
Unrealized gains (losses) on
mametﬂblg secéﬁties' g.et Of L) s eevsserrrisrrrrrrmnsisiiiin 2'304 2’304
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative
financial instruments, net of tax «------sooosirmemmnnnn, (38) (38)
Comprehensive income (loss)------ {89,932)
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost-- (1) (1)
Balance at March 31, 2006 oo ¥85,955 ¥281,014 ¥ {57,369) ¥ (1,342) ¥ (N ¥308,251
Compensation expense for Stock Options «««----r-eeeeesecrenns 25 25
Comprehensive income (loss):
NEL |GGG wrrrrrerrartrrrmerr ittt s sasa s st s vrrnns s s s ey (41'500) (41‘500)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign ¢urrency translation adjustments «ooereunesinnn 2,789 2,789
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tai - (878) (878)
e b T @390 399
Unrealized gains {losses) on derivative
finantial INStruments, Ret of Lax e, 12 12
Comprehensive income (lOSS) e (42,913)
Adjustment to initially appty SFAS No. 158, net of tax-----.-- (262) (262)
Effect of change in fiscal year-end of certain subsidiary------ (32) (32)
Purchase of treasury Stock, at COSt ey {1} (1)
Balance at March 31, 2007 ¥85,955 ¥281,039 ¥ (98,901) ¥ (3,017) ¥ (8) ¥265,068
Compensation expense for stock options -« eeevveeniimnnnns 33 34
Comprehensive income (loss):
NEL [OBSG errensmentrrrirmvmni e ssessa {15,995} (15,995)
Other comprehensive income {l0ss);
Fareign currency translation adjustments ««.oesevemmmernees (8,589) (8,589)
Pension liability adjustment, net of tax...»r e {11,800} (11,800)
Urnrealized gains (losses) on
marketable Securities, Net Of tax-- - ereseriaenes (1,578) (1,578}
COMPrehensive iNCOME {I0SS) «-+errrererrrmmerssrnieseseirrannns {37,962)
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost: {2) (2)
Balance at March 31, 2008 i ¥85,955 ¥281,073 ¥(114,898) ¥(24,984) ¥(10) ¥227,138
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Accumulated
Addltional ather Treasury
Comman paid-in Accumulated  comprehensive stock,
stock capital deficit income (loss) at cost Total
Balance at March 31, 2007 .-, $859,550 $2,810,390 $ (989,010} $ (30,170) $ (B0) $2,650,680
Compensation expense for StoCk options »»rrreeessseeeeninn, 340 340
Comprehensive income {loss):
INEL IOGG +eeeesrenssrmmssarintiss s is s sy e e ressnes i {159,950) {159,950)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments ««+rrrein {85,890} {85,890)
Pension lability adjustment, net of tax....--oweveseiarnnns (118,000) (118,000)
Unrealized gains {losses) on
marketable securities, net Of fax: - (15,780) (15‘730)
Comprehensive income {l0s8)---------eeeee (379,620)'
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost--- - (20) (20i
Balance at March 31, 2008 - - oo 5859.550 52,810,730 5{1.148,960) 5(249,840) 5(100, 52'271_330

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

NEC Electronics Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.5. dollars
20086 2007 2008 2008
Cash flows from operating activities:
PEL DS - - revreerrmstssstatsiiinimiiniaaii s r e r e ne e ¥ (98,198) ¥ (41,500) ¥(15’995) $ (159,950)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization -«-.sererererereermernen 89,342 82,960 75,067 750,670
Deferred iINCOME LAX@S - erserrarire s nstsasrarens 46‘637 2'998 8’352 83,520
Loss on property, plant and equipment, net:--.oeennnen. 2,817 5,983 3,559 35,590
Realized (gain) loss on marketable securities -« 178 (6,383) —_ -
Provision for pension and severance costs, less payments --- 1,072 (1,115) (7,962) {79,620)
Equity in loss of affiliated companigs - -----------emmseseninnenens — 468 207 2,070
Minority interest in income (loss) of
consolidated subsidiaries ............................................ (354) 552 251 2’510
Net gain of business transfer --------coooeeirrenn, — — {2,040) {20,400)
{Increase) decrease in notes and accounts receivable----- (7,928) 15,985 {3,710) {37,100}
{Increase) decrease in inventories ««« e (3,062) (9,333} 856 8,560
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable ------- 5,675 16,171 {17,309} (173,090)
Increase (decrease) in other current ligbilities ««----oreee 6,605 (4,239) 2,884 28,840
OLNEE, MEL rrremem ettt e 7,106 4,184 (898) (8,9801
Net cash provided by operating activities «----------reeeeene 49,890 66,731 43,262 432,620
Cash flows from Investing activities: -
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment «--..- 56,474 39,803 20,653 206,530
Additions to property, plant and equipment ---------r-eremeeeenes (106,642) {121,126) {62,188) (621,880)
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities «rvrorrrrreseerees 395 3,660 — —
Purchase of marketable securities ««oreereermninn . (816) — — —_
Investments in affiliated companies ------- - -rereererereranne — (1,400) E—_— —_
(Increase) decrease in loans receivablg .-« (223) 242 {2) (20)
Proceeds from business transfer, net of cash transferred --- - — — 5,340 53,400
Increase in other investment $SECUrities e (1,021) — (328) (3,280)
Other‘ [ R R L R L T R T r P T PR P LT T PP PP LYY PPV PY PIPRTRLET (2,840) 324 (1,244) (12'440_)
Net cash used in investing activitigs «rer-r--orrrrrrrresenn (54,673) {78,497) (37,769) (377,690)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from IoNgAerm deht - -« - - 2,335 — —_ —_
Repayments of long-term debt «-eceveerrrrimareenenen. (10,581) (7,191) {15,980) {(159,800)
Increase {(decrease)} in short-term borrowings, netecreere-e 124 (4,018) (2,711} (27,110)
Repayments of lease obligation to related parties -t {1,198) (1,865) (1,765) (17,650)
DIvIdENdS Paids« sreesreraresssrerarsranss e {1,235} — —_— —_—
Transaction under COMIMON CONrOl - rerrresrmrrmereisisiaie. (1,974) _— — —_
Payments on intangible assets purchase contracts -« — {2,196) {2,527) {25,270)
OLREE, MBL-wrtrsrocerers st ie ittt st a s e (1) (3) {2) (20_)
Net cash used in financing activities -« corvrsmemmminninann. (12,530) (15,273) (22,985) (229,850)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - 2,682 1,595 {2,408) {24,080)
Net decrease In cash and cash equivalents ----------coceererenn, (14,631) (25,444) (19,900) (199,000)
Effect of change In fiscal year-end of certain subsldiary ------ — (244) - —_
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year-------+--rererene 225,691 211,060 185,372 1,853,720_
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year---------cc-crcvvrvrrereee ¥ 211,060 ¥ 185,372 ¥165,472 $1,654,720
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash pald during the year for:
INLEIEG e erererarsramriimtriririririsrsiarrran ettt rs e ¥ 927 ¥ 706 ¥ 765 13 7'650
INCOME LAXES ----evsrsrriontisrmmammiiniaisiinriareranmn e siseiiasiia 8'217 33 4,572 45,720
Non-cash investing and financing transaction:
Contribution to capita] ................................................... 6,092 —_ — —
Machinery and equipment obtained by capital leases:-- 3,337 220 928 9,280
Intangible assets purchase CONracS  rrr-roreerrrmamiesmianns 5,243 721 —_ —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NEC Electrenics Corparation and Censolidated Subsldiarles

1. Background and Basis of Presentation

NEC Electronics Corporation was formed on November 1, 2002 as a wholly owned subsidiary of NEC
Corporation (*NEC”) as a result of a separation by new incorporation (shinsetsu bunkatsu) under the
corporate separation (kaisha bunkatsu) provisions of the former Japanese Commercial Code. Pursuant to
NEC’s separation plan, substantially ali of NEC's semiconductor business operations and related assets
and liabilities, excluding those related to the general-purpose DRAM business, were transferred to NEC
Electronics Corporation, at historical cost, in exchange for the issuance to NEC of 100,000,000 shares of
its common stock. On Novermnber 1, 2002, NEC Efectronics Corporation acquired most of the assets that
were intended to be transferred from NEC by operation of law. However, certain asset transfers, specifically,
the investments in NEC Electronics {China) Co., Ltd., previously named Beijing Hua Hong NEC IC Design Co.,
Ltd., and Shougang NEC Electronics Co., Ltd., were subject to Chinese government approval and
registration. These transfers were completed during the year ended March 31, 2004. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis that all intended asset transfers,
including the investments in these Chinese subsidiaries, had been completed as planned for the periods
prior to corporate separation. NEC had operated the businesses which were transferred to NEC Electronics
Corporation as an internal division and through various business units and subsidiaries.

NEC Efectronics Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Company”} is a leading integrated provider of system-
level semiconductor solutions for electronic products and systems across a variety of key markets in the
communications, computing and peripherals, consumer electronics, and automotive and industrial sectors.

2. Signiflcant Accounting Policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of consclidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NEC Electronics Corporation and all entities
in which NEC Electronics Corporation has a controlling financial interest. All significant intercompany
transactions and accounts are eliminated. For purposes of financial reporting, a certain foreign subsidiary
has a December 31 fiscal year-end. Therefore, the Company recognizes the financial position and results of
operations of such subsidiary on a basis of a three-month lag. There have been no significant transactions
with such subsidiary during the periods from January 1 to March 31.

During the year ended March 31, 2007, a certain subsidiary changed the fiscal yearend to March 31
from December 31, in order to conform the subsidiary’s year-end with that of the Company. The loss of the
subsidiary for the months that exceeds twelve months was directly charged to the accumulated deficit.

Cash equlvalents
All highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less are considered to be
cash equivalents.

Forelgn currency translation
Foreign currency transactions are measured at the applicable rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction
dates. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are remeasured at the
applicable rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Exchange differences are charged or credited to income.
Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into yen at applicable year-end rates of
exchange, and all revenue and expense accounts are transiated at average rates of exchange prevailing
during the year. The resulting transtation adjustments are accumulated and included in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), classified as part of shareholders' equity.
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Allowance for doubtful accounts
An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on credit loss history and an evaluation of any specific
doubtful accounts.

Investments

The Company classifies its marketable equity securities as available-for-sale, which are reported at fair
value with unrealized gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income {loss), net of
tax. When a decline in value of the marketable security is deemed to be otherthan-temporary, the Company
recognizes an impairment loss to the extent of the decline. In determining if and when such a decline in
value is otherthan-temporary, the Company evaluates market conditions, trends of earnings, and other key
measures. Realized gains or losses on the sale of marketable securities are based on the average cost of a
particular security held at the time of sale.

The investments In affiliated companies (investees over which the Company has the ability to exercise
significant influence, and corporate joint ventures) are accounted for by the equity method.

Other investment securities are stated at cost. The Company periodically evaluates whether the value of
the investment has declined. When the fair value is less than its cost, the Company judges whether the
decline of an investment value is temporary. The Company evaluates various conditions, such as the
duration of the decline, significance of the decline, the financial position and the expected future
performance of the investee as well as intention and ability, for the Company to maintain the investment. If
the decline is deemed to be otherthan-temparary, the Company recognizes the difference between the
investment's cost and its fair value as an impairment loss.

inventorles
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market principally on a first-in, first-out basis.

The Company analyzes all inventory including slow moving and obsolete inventory, and writes down such
inventory to its estimated market value based on assumptions about future demand and market conditions.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is computed principally using the declining-
balance method at rates based on the following estimated useful lives of the assets: buildings, mainly 15 to
45 years, machinery and equipment, mainly 4 to 8 years. Maintenance and repairs, including minor
renewals and betterments, are charged to income as incurred.

Leased assets meeting certain criteria are capitalized and amortized using the declining-balance method
over the lease term.

License fees and other Intangibles
License fees and other intangibles are amortized on a straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

impalrment of long-lived assets

Long-ived assets to be held and used, including license fees and other intangibles, are evaluated for impairment

using an estimate of undiscounted cash flows whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable, If the estimate of undiscounted cash flows is less than

the carrying amount of the assets, an impairment loss is recorded based on the fair value of the assets.
Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale are evaluated at the lower of carrying amount or fair value

less cost to sell.

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement
and tax basis of assets and liabilities, using the enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the
temporary differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are also recognized for the estimated
future tax benefits attributable to operating loss carryforwards. Valuation allowances are established to
reduce deferred tax assets 1o their net realizable value if it is more likety than not that some portion or all of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Effective April 1, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB") Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an Interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes™ (“FIN No. 48"). FIN No. 48 clarifies that the accounting
for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in consolidated financial statements and prescribes recognition
and measurement of a tax position. Please refer to Note 9 for meore information.
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Stock-based compensation

The Company had accounted for its stock-based compensation plans under the fair value recognition
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {“SFAS™) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. Effective April 1, 20086, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123 (revised
2004), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123(R)") under the modified prospective method. The adoption
of SFAS No. 123(R) did not have a significant effect on its financial position or results of operations
because the Company continues to account for its stock-based compensation plans under the fair value
recognition provisions.

Net income per share

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of shares
of common stock outstanding for the period. Diluted net income per share assumes the dilution that could
occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common
stock, or resulted in the issuance of common stock unless their inclusion would have an antidiiutive effect.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue for transactions when the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence
of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the seller’s price to the
buyer is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Revenue from sales of products is recognized when the customer has taken title to the product and the
risk and rewards of ownership have been substantively transferred. Under normal terms and conditions, this
may occur at the time of delivery to the customer’s site or upon customer acceptance.

A sales rebate to certain distributors is provided based on the amount of purchases by the distributors
and is recognized as a reduction of sales based on each of the underlying sales transactions that results in
progress by the distributors toward earning the rebate,

Derlvative financial instruments

The Company recognizes all derivative financial instruments in the consolidated financial statements at fair
value regardless of the purpose or intent for holding the derivative financiat instruments. Changes in the fair
value of derivative financial instruments are either recognized periodically in income or in shareholders'
equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) depending on whether the
derivative financial instruments qualify for hedge accounting, and if so, whether they qualify as a fair value
hedge or a cash flow hedge. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments accounted for as a
fair value hedge are recorded in income along with the portion of the change in the fair value of the hedged
item that relates to the hedged risk. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments accounted
for as a cash flow hedge, to the extent they are effective as a hedge, are recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), net of tax. Amounts recorded to accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) are reclassified into earnings when the hedged transaction effects earnings or is probable of not
occurring. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments not qualifying as a hedge are
reported in income.

Securitizatlon of recelvables

The Company has several securitization programs under which certain trade receivables are sold, without
recourse, to Special Purpose Entities (“SPEs”) and others. In certain securitizations, the Company has
retained a subordinated interest.

When the Company sells the receivables in a securitization transaction, the carrying value of the
receivables is allocated to the portion retained and the portion sold, based on their relative fair value at the
sale date. Gain or loss on the sale of the receivables is calculated based on the allocated carrying value of
the receivables sold. Retained interests are initially recorded at the allocated carrying value of the
receivables and are periodically reviewed for impairment. The Company generally estimates fair value based
on the present value of future expected cash flows using certain assumptions; credit losses and discount
rates commensurate with the risks involved,

Asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations are legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets. The
Company recognizes the fair value of asset retirement obligations as a liability when a reasonable estimate
can be made and the related asset retirement cost is capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the
related asset. The asset retirement cost is depreciated over the estimated useful life of the related asset.
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Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company records changes in the asset retirement obligations resulting
from the passage of time and revisions to either the timing or the amount of the original estimate of
undiscounted cash flows at the end of each period,

Reclassifications
Certain amounts in the consolidated financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2007
have been reclassified to conform to the 2008 presentation.

New accounting standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No, 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS No. 1577). SFAS

No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclesures about
fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and

the Company will adopt SFAS No. 157 effective April 1, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the effect
that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on its financial position and results of operations,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 {“SFAS No. 159"). SFAS No, 159
permits companies to choose to measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates. Unrealized
gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected shall be recognized in earnings.
SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and the Company will adopt
SFAS No. 159 effective April 1, 2008. At this time, the Company does not anticipate electing to use the fair
valuge measurements permitted by SFAS No. 159,

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations {“SFAS
No. 141(R)"). SFAS No. 141(R) establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and
measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any
noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and the goodwiil acquired in the business combination or a gain from
a bargain purchase. SFAS No. 141(R} also establishes disclosure requirements to enable the evaluation of
the nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS No. 141(R) is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008 and the Company will adopt SFAS No. 141(R) effective April 1, 2009,
The impact that adoption of SFAS No. 141(R) will have on our financial position and results of operation will
he dependent upon the specific terms of any applicable future business combinations.

In December 2007, the FASB concurrently issued SFAS No. 1680, Noncontroliing Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements—an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin (“ARB") No. 51
(“SFAS No. 1607). SFAS No. 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for the ewnership
interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income
attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest, changes in a parent’s ownership interest,
and the valuation of retained noncentrolling equity investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidated.
SFAS No. 160 also establishes disclosure requirements that clearly identify and distinguish between the
interests of the parent and the interests of the noncontroliing owners. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2008 and the Company will adopt SFAS No. 160 effective April 1,
2009. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 160 will have on its
financial position and the result of operations.

3. U.S. Dollar Amounts

U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of the readers of the consolidated financial
statements. These translations should not be construed as representations that the yen amounts actually
represent, or have been or could be converted into, U.S. dollars.

A rate of ¥100=U.5.%$1, the approximate current rate at March 31, 2008, has been used for the purpose
of presentation of the U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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4. Investments

5. Inventories

The summary of marketable equity securities at March 31, 2007 and 2008 which were classified as available-
for-sale was as follows:

Millions of yen

Gross Gross

unrealized unrealized

hoiding holding
Cost gains losses Fair value
March 31, 2007 e, ¥1,033 ¥4,064 ¥ ¥5,097
March 31, 2008 o 1,933 1,414 (2) 3,345

Thousands of U.5. dollars

Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized
holding holding
Cost gains losses Fair value
March 31, 2008 - -eererrmresi e $19,330 $14,140 ${20) $33,450

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities were ¥385 million and ¥8,681 million for the years
ended March 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Gross realized gains were ¥54 million and ¥6,383 million
for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Gross realized losses, inciuding impairments,
was ¥232 million for the vear ended March 31, 2006.

Investments in equity securities, included in investments, other, with an aggregate carrying amount of
¥261 million and ¥527 million ($5,270 thousand) at March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively, consist of
investments in securities of nonpublic companies. These investments were not evaluated for impairment at
March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively, because the Company did not identify any events or changes in
circumstances thal. may have had a significant adverse effect on the fair value of those investments. The
Company recognized otherthantemporary impairment losses on investments in securities of non public
companies of ¥2231 million and ¥994 million for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

The Company’s investment in affiliated companies accounted for by the equity method together with a
percentage of the Company’s ownership of common stock at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were Adcore-tech
Co., Ltd. (11.7%). Since Adcore-tech Co., Ltd. was a corporate joint venture, the Company accounts for the
investment by the equity method.

Inventories at March 31, 2007 and 2008 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
March 31 2007 2008 2008
Finished DdeUCtS ........................................................................... ¥22 750 ¥19,859 5193,590
Work in process and semifinished components <. 37,502 37,307 373,070

Raw materials and purchased components 18,913 18,673 186,730

¥79,165 ¥75,839 $758,390

6. License Fees and Other Intangibles

Intangible assets acquired during the year ended March 31, 2008 totaled ¥1,458 million {$14,580 thousand),
which are subject to amortization and primarily consist of license fees of ¥881 million ($8,810 thousand). The
weighted-average amortization period for license fees is approximately 5 years.
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License fees and other intangibles subject to amortization at March 31, 2007 and 2008 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen .5, dollars
2007 2008 2008

Gross Gross Gross
carrying  Accumulated carrying  Accumulated carrying  Accumulated
March 31 amount amortization amount amortization amount amortization
License fegs v ¥14,035 ¥ (7,773) ¥13,505 ¥ (9,887) $135,050 $ (98,870)
Other «wevevvvvenes - 4,965 (2,770) 4,350 (2,497) 43,500 (24,970}

¥19,900 ¥{10,543) ¥17,855 ¥(12,384) $178,550 $(123,840)

The aggregate amortization expense for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 was ¥5,560
million, ¥4,352 million and ¥4,848 million ($48,480 thousand), respectively. The estimated amortization
expense for the next five years is as follows:

Thousands of
Year ending March 31 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

¥2,643 $26,430
1,255 12,550

564 5,640
260 2,600
102 1,020

Intangibles with indefinite useful lives at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were insignificant.

7. Short-Term Borrowings and Long-Term Debt

Short-term borrowings at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31 2007 2008 2008
Unsecured loans, principally from banks, including bank overdrafts

(average interest rate of 2.51% in 2007 and 1.25% in 2008)---------- ¥3,609 ¥954 $9,540

At March 31, 2008, the Company had unused lines of credit for shortterm finan¢ing aggregating ¥20,000
million {$200,000 thousand) subject to an annual renewal with commitment fees on the unused portion
ranging from 0.15% to 0.20% and ¥8,951 million {$89,510 thousand) with no commitment fees generally
with maturities within one year.

Long-term debt at March 31, 2007 and 2008 was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
March 31 2007 2008 2008
Loans, principally from banks and insurance companies,
due through 2008, with interest rates of 0.85% to 5.00%
at March 31, 2007 and with interest rate of 5.00%
at March 31, 2008:
UnsECured.......... 16‘507 619 6'190
Zero coupon unsecured yen convertible bonds due 2011,
convertible currently at ¥9,860 for one common share,
redeemable before maturity date------------oreemsmsmsiieeeee 110,000 110,000 1,100,000
126,548 110,619 1,106,190
Less - portion dUe Wlthln one year................................................. (15.914) (619) (6’190)

¥110,634 ¥110,000 $1,100,000

The convertible bonds are contingently convertible based on market price. The conversion prices of the
convertible bonds are subject to adjustment if there is a share split or consolidation of shares, or, in certain
circumstances, if new shares are issued at a price less than the current quoted market price. In addition, the
bonds carry a call option that gives the Company the right to call the bonds at the principal amount after May 27,
2008, if the Company's stock price is 130% or more of the conversion price for 30 consecutive trading days.
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At March 31, 2008, annual maturities on long-term debt during the next five years are as follows:

Thousands of
Year ending March 31 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2000 e . ¥ 619 % 6,190
DO +orvrrmrererrenre e b a Lo e E e R et b e b ek L ek b be e b ea e es e nhe bt et s brbe e — —
0 T T PO OO OO — —
L0 OO OO OO 110,000 1,100,000
L8 1 I OO TSROSO TOURTRPTON — —_

8. Pension and Severance Plans

NEC Electronics Corporation and domestic subsidiaries have severance indemnity plans and noncontributory
defined benefit pension plans, including cash balance pension plans. NEC Electronics Corporation and certain
domestic subsidiaries previously had contributory defined benefit pension plans that included a governmental
welfare component which would otherwise be provided by the Japanese government.

Effective November 1, 2002, in connection with the corporation separation, the Company assumed
responsibility for pension and severance benefits for its active employees as of that date, located in Japan,
related to the severance indemnity plans and contributory defined benefit pension plans. The related plan
assets remained with the trusteed fund associated with NEC's plans. In the consolidated financial
statements, benefit obligations are based upon the participant data for the Company’s employees. Plan
assets were altocated based upon benefit obligations.

NEC Electronics Corporation and certain domestic subsidiaries have a “point-based benefits system,”
under which benefits are calculated based on accumulated points allocated to employees each year
according to their job classification and their performance.

NEC Electronics Corporation and certain domestic subsidiaries have cash balance pension plans. Under the
cash balance pension plans, each participant has an account which is credited yearly based on the current
base rate of pay, their job classification and interest crediting rate calculated based on the market interest rate.

NEC Electronics Corporation and certain domestic subsidiaries reduced the future portion of the
defined benefit pension plans and introduced the defined contribution pension plans during the year
ended March 31, 2008,

Most foreign subsidiaries have various retirement plans covering substantially all of their employees.
These plans are mainly defined contribution plans and also defined henefit plans. The funding policy for the
defined contribution plans is to annually contribute an amount equal to a certain percentage of the
participant's annual salary.

The Company adopted SFAS No., 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R} (“SFAS No. 158"),
effective March 31, 2007. The Company recognizes the difference between projected benefit obligations
and fair value of plan assets in the consolidated balance sheet. The Company also recognizes as a
component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, prior service costs and actuariat losses that arise
during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost. The adoption of SFAS
No. 158 had no effect on profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2007 and 2008 and it will not affect
the result of operations in future periods.

March 31 is the measurement date for the determination of the Company's benefit obligation for the
majority of its plans. Reconciliations of beginning and ending balances of the benefit obligations and the fair
value of the plan assets were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.5. dollars
March 31 2007 2008 2008
Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations at beginning of year - ¥137,670 ¥144.383 $1,443,830
SOIVICE QOB wrrrrererrmrranieriie it ne ittt e s sa e e e e aaennes 7,015 4,882 48,820
Interest COSt -r - 3'441 3'627 36'270
Actuarial 1088 «----s-eeeeeemes 972 700 7,000
Benefits paid e 4,715) (9,888) (98,880)
Plan amendment s ===t e —_ 700 7,000
Benefit obligations at end of year - 144 383 144,404 1,444,040
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Thousands of

Millions of yen 1).S. doltars

March 31 2007 2008 2008
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year----------oceeeveeeeeee - ¥ 81 571 ¥ 73,011 $ 730,110

Actual return on p|an ASGELG - erermmrerere et e 184 (8,794) (87’940}

Employer's CONLADULIONS -+ -eeeseermerr et 12,760 7,794 77,940

Benefits paid ............................................................................ (1,504) 2,047 20'470

Fair value of plan assets at end of year----- 73,011 69,964 699,640

FUNGEM SLATUS -+-+w-sereeremsesersessrsssmmsmessmsmssessasssseseeseenesneseseneseasessas ¥(71,372) ¥74,440) $(744,400)

During the year ended March 31, 2007, as part of the employer's contributions, the Company contributed
certain marketable equity securities to an employee retirement benefit trust. The securities held in the trust
are qualified as plan assets. The fair value of these securities at the time of contribution was ¥5,021
million. Upon contribution of these available-for-sale securities, a gross unrealized gain of ¥3,550 million
was recognized in the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended March 31, 2007.

Amounts recognized on the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dellars

March 31 2007 2008 2008
Amounts recorded to accumulated other
comprehensive {income) loss, before tax

¥ 23,200 ¥ 34,230 $ 342,300

PriOr S@IVICE COSLF -rererrirm i {22,155) (19,736) {197,360)

ACTUANTAL IGSE™ «+rrrererrremrrmrr e s 45,355 53,966 539,660
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of:

Other assets «« v rermnnmnn 163 20 200

Accrued pension and SeVerance COSIS: e {71,535) {74,460) {744,600}
Net amounts rtﬁgmzed ¥(71,372) ¥(74,440) 5(744'400)

(*) Unrecognized prior service cost and actuarial loss are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average remaining-
service period of employees expected to receive benefits under the plan, which is 16 years for the years ended
March 31, 2007 and 2008.

The accumulated benefit obligations for all defined benefit pension plans were ¥144,009 million and

¥144,404 million ($1,444,040 thousand) as of March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

The projected benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets for pension plans with projected benefit
obligations in excess of plan assets, and the accumulated benefit obligations and the fair value of plan
assets for pension plans with accumulated benefit cbiigations in excess of plan assets at March 31, 2007
and 2008 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

March 31 2007 2008 2008
Plans with projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:

Projected beneﬁt ob“gat'ons ¥142'277 ¥142!147 51'421'470

Fair value of p|an ASSELG ettt e e 70'742 67,687 676'870
Plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:

Accumulated benefit obligations «rrererrrrm e 141,903 142,147 1,421,470

Fair value of Plan @88ets « v rrroerererem e 70,742 67,687 676,870

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at March 31, 2007 and 2008
were as follows:

March 31 2007 2008
DiSCOUnt rate ................................................................................................... 25% 2.5%
Rate of increase in future compensation level 2.4% — 3.8% 2.0% — 3.0%

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net pension and severance cost for the years ended
March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2009
DiSCOUnt rate..................... 2.5% 2'5% 2_5%
Rate of increase in future compensation leve!l v 1.7% — 3.8% 2.4% — 3.8% 2.0% — 3.0%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets e 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
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The basis for determining the long-term rate is a combination of historical returns and prospective return
assumptions derived from a combination of research and industry forecast.
The allgcation for the plan assets at March 31, 2007 and 2008 was as follows:

March 31 2007 2008
Asset category:
Debt securities 26% 29%
Short-term investments 13% 12%

Target allocation of equity securities, debt securities, short-term investments and others is 35%, 25%, 10%
and 30%, respectively.

The Company's chjective is to secure the required long-term total returns, while taking allowable risks,
{o ensure the payment of pension benefits, lump-sum benefits at death, and other lump-sum benefits to
participants and annuitants, etc. in the future. The fund seeks to achieve the long-term investment
returns that exceed the expected interest rate, which is required for the ¢ash balance pension plan
adopted by the Company.

To achieve the investment objective of the plan assets, the fund shall strive to select appropriate assets
for the eligible investment, establish the asset allocation policy, which is the optimum combination of
assets for the future in consideration of the expected rate of return and risk, etc. thereof, and maintain the
asset allocation through rebalancing, etc. Such asset allocation policy is established from a medium-to-long
term view of three to five years. The asset allocation policy is reviewed as necessary where the conditions
thereof changed from the time of establishment of the asset allocation policy.

Components of net pension and severance cost for all defined benefit plans, including both the
Company’s and the employees’ contributory portion of such plans, for the years ended March 31, 2006,
2007 and 2008 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen LS. dollars
Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2008 2008
Service cost e ¥ 7,363 ¥ 7,015 ¥ 4,882 $ 48,820
Interest COSE rreremrrrrr et e 3'243 3'441 3‘627 36,270
Expected return on plan assets oo, (1,426} (1,679) {1,898) {18,980)
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost-- (1,746) (1,762) (1,719) {17,190)
Amortization of actuarial 1ggg --------wereremerraiennnns 3,200 2,820 2,781 27,810
Amortization of unrecognized net obligation at
April 1, 1989 being recognized over 17 years - 261 —_ —_ —_
Net pension and severance cost
for all defined benefit plans - wmmveeerrvnens ¥10,895 ¥ 9,835 ¥ 7,673 $ 76,730

The estimated amounts of prior service cost and actuarial less included in accumulated other
comprehensive income {loss) at March 31, 2008, that are expected to be amortized into net periodic
benefit cost over the next year are ¥1,700 million ($17,000 thousand) and ¥3,400 million ($34,000
thousand), respectivaly.

The total cost for all defined benefit and defined contribution plans was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2008 2008
Net pension and severance cost

for all defined benefit plans e ¥10,895 ¥ 9,835 ¥7,673 576,730

Cost for defined contribution plang--«-:-eeeseees g75 875 1,758 17,580
Total cost for all defined benefit

and defined contribution ptans - weeererererrrns ¥11 870 ¥10,710 ¥9,431 $94,310

Cost for defined contribution plans includes the amount of cost recognized of ¥1,070 million ($10,700
thousand) for NEC Electronics Corporation and certain domestic subsidiaries’ contributions to the plans for
the year ended March 31, 2008.
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The Company alsc contributes to multiemployer plan. The amount of contributions to multiemployer plans
for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were ¥90 million, ¥220 million and ¥246 million
{$2,460 thousand), respectively. The costs for multiemployer plans were increased for the year ended
March 31, 2007 to improve the funded status of the plans.

The Company expects to contribute approximately ¥6,200 million {$62,000 thousand) to its pension
plans in fiscal year ending March 31, 2009.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

Thousands of

Year ending March 31 Millions of yen U.5. dollars
¥ 5,100 $ 51,000

5,800 58,000

5,300 53,000

5,000 50,000

5,200 52,000

27,400 274,000

9. Income Taxes

The components of loss before income taxes and the provision for income taxes were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2008 2008
Income (loss) before income taxes:
NEC Electronics Corporation and

domestic subsidiaries -------roererreen ¥(54,165) ¥(42,547) ¥{18,343) $(183,430)

Foreign subsidiaries -, 11,779 7,172 15,091 150,910

¥(42,386) ¥{35,375) ¥ (3,252) $ (32,520)

Provision for income taxes:
Current:
NEC Electronics Corporation and

domestic subsidiaries ¥ 3,732 ¥ 483 ¥ 787 $ 7,870

Foreign subsidiarigs ------omeemereminininenns 5,797 1,654 3,146 31,460
9,629 2,107 3,933 39,330
Deferred:
NEC Electronics Corporation and
domestic subsidiarias e 50,186 3,962 1,256 12,560
Foreign subsidiarigs «------coremereneenneene. (3,549) (964) 7,096 70,960
46,637 2,998 8,352 83,520

¥ 56,166 ¥ 5,105 ¥ 12,285 $ 122,850

The Company is subject to a number of different income taxes which, in the aggregate, result in a statutory tax
rate in Japan of approximately 40.5% for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008. A reconciliation
between the reported total income tax provision and the amount computed by multiplying the loss before
income taxes by the statutory tax rate was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dotlars

Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2008 2008

Expected tax benefit - ¥(17,166) ¥(14,327) ¥ (1,317) $ (13,170}
Increase in taxes resuiting from:

Changes in valuation allowance -~ 72,976 19,043 13,110 131,100

Internationa! tax rate differences v 453 782 58 580

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes - 259 223 570 5,700

(356) (616) {136) (1,360Q)

INCOME taX PrOVISION: - rerr e ¥ 56,166 ¥ 5,105 ¥12,285 $122,850
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The significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. datlars
March 31 2007 2008 2008
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued pension and SEVErance COSIG s ¥ 30,160 ¥ 31,731 $§ 317,310
Research and development costs 12,637 10,382 103,820
ACCIUEH DONUS - eremmrorrererrerameinarar e 5,304 5,635 56,350
INVESEITIENTS -+ rereerererrmrmremrisirrieinttstrarans s s rbrarsnesea s e ssrares 3,131 4,419 44,190
[FIVENLOEIES «rererremrrrarrsriarssesrs st iettrari s s s sa s reasraaa b ns e naa e nes 4,597 3,764 37,640
Property, plant and eqUIPMEnt e, 5,622 5,873 58,730
0perating loss carryforwards .................................................. 36,124 49,604 496'040
ORI v errrrerers st s 9,640 7,748 77,480
107,215 119,156 1,191,560
Less = valuation GllOWANCE -« -««-+-«remerrmrsarsrrarernerreeine e iaans (95,459) {115,058) (1,150,580)
TORA! -+ er e remmermme et et re s s e n e ¥ 11,716 ¥ 4,098 $ 40,980
Deferred tax liabilities:
Tax deductiDI@ FEGRIVE - rrerer s ¥ 2,420 ¥ 1561 § 15,610
Marketable SQCUMLIES - -r-rrrrrarmrreeerrmmimerrir e ncncnnes 1,646 572 5,720
Tax on undistributed earnings - 5,589 7,824 78,240
Gain on securities contributed to employee
retirement benefit trust---- 1,438 1,438 14,380
(010 V= T PPN 796 838 8,380
TOUAI +++ereseserertrttmmtemtrriie i ra st e e e ¥ 11,889 ¥ 12,233 $ 122330

The deferred tax assets and liabilities were included in deferred tax assets, deferred tax liabilities and other
current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.

The valuation allowance was primartly related to deferred tax assets of NEC Electronics Corporation, its
domestic subsidiaries and NEC Electronics America, Inc. The net changes in the total valuation allowance
for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were increase of ¥70,838 million, ¥20,244 million
and ¥19,559 million {$195,590 thousand), respectively.

The tax benefits of operating loss carryforwards utilized for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and
2008 were ¥3,891 million, ¥2,931 mitlion and ¥396 million ($3,960 thousand), respectively.

At March 31, 2008, the Company had cperating loss carryforwards amounting to ¥152,732 million
($1,527,320 thousand) of which ¥139,454 million ($1,394,540 thousand) relate to domestic subsidiaries
and will expire during the period from 2013 through 2015. The remainder of ¥13,278 million ($132,780
thousand) relates te foreign subsidiaries with no expiration date.

Effective Aprit 1, 2007, the Company adopted the provisicns of FIN No. 48. A reconciliation of the
beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S, doltars

Balance at April 1, 2007 rerrreerrmmrir i ¥  — $ —_
Additions for tax positions of the CUITent year -+ -« errere e 2,581 25,810
Additions for tax positions of the Prior years: - e 308 3,080
Reductions for tax positions of the prior Years <, — —
Lapse of the applicable statute of MItAtONS s e s —_— —_
Balance at March 31, 2008 -:-r e rererermimmimn e ¥2,889 $28,890

At March 31, 2008, the Company had ¥2,889 million ($28,890 thousand) of total unrecognized tax
henefits, of which ¥308 million ($3,080 thousand) represents the amount of unrecognized tax benefits that,
if recognized, would affect the effective income tax rate in future periods.

The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized income tax benefits and penalties in
interest expense and loss on sales or disposal of property, plant and equipment and other. Both interest
and penalties accrued as of March 31, 2008 and interest and penalties included in consolidated
statements of operations for the year ended March 31, 2008 are not materiat.
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Although it is difficult to estimate the range of any increase or decrease in uncertain tax position, the Company
does not helieve it is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits would materially
change in the next 12 months. The Company estimates that the unrecognized tax benefits associated with
transfer pricing matters at March 31, 2009 could be reduced approximately by ¥300 million ($3,000 thousand).

The Company which files income tax returns in Japan and foreign tax jurisdictions is generally no longer
subject to income tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 1999,

10. shareholders’ Equity

(1) Retalned eamings

The Japanese Company Law provides that an amount equal to 10% of distributions from retained earnings
paid by NEC Electronics Corporation and domestic subsidiaries be appropriated as a legal reserve. No further
appropriation is required when the total amount of additional paid-in capital and the legal reserve equals 25%
of the stated capital. The Japanese Company Law also provides that the additional paid-in capital and the legal
reserve are available for appropriations by the resolution of the shareholders.

The amount of retained earnings available for dividends under the Japanese Company Law is calculated at
¥130,263 million ($1,302,630 thousand) as of March 31, 2008 based on the NEC Electronics Corporation's
financial information prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

At the June 27, 2006 shareholders’ meeting of NEC Electronics Corporation, the shareholders approved a
proposal to reclassify additional paid-in capital in the amount ¥84,618 million to eliminate for the
accumulated deficit under the former Japanese Commercial Code. Such adjustment was not recorded for
purpose of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, because it did not
meet all of the requirements associated with accounting for quasi-reorganizations.

(2) Other comprehensive income (loss)
Changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2008 2008
Foreign currency translation adjustments:

Balance at beginning of ygar: .. ¥ 2956 ¥ 7,713 ¥ 10,502 $ 105,020

Change in the current period e 4,757 2,789 (8,589) (85,890)

Balance at end Of year= -« seemarsnsreiinninens ¥ 7,713 ¥ 10,502 ¥ 1,913 $ 19,130
Minimum pension liability adjustment:

Balance at beginning Of year: - e ¥({16,040) ¥(14,797) ¥ — [ —_

Change in the current period oo 1,243 (878} —_ —

Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158 — 15,675 — —

Balance at end of year -t ¥{14,797) % — ¥ —_ -3 —_
Unrealized gains (losses} on marketable securities:

Balance at beginning of year-----coreirresniie ¥ 3,450 ¥ 5754 ¥ 2418 $ 24,180

Change in the current periog - vermrrerrnee.. 2,304 (3,336) (1,578) (15,780)

Balance at end of year----------reermrermeeeeiiiinan ¥ 5754 ¥ 2,418 ¥ 840 S 8,400
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments:

Balance at beginning of ygar---- - rencncnns ¥ 26 ¥ (12) ¥ —_ [ —_

Change in the current periog -« wrreesere i (38) 12 —_— —_

Balance at end of Year -« -«ssreeraeamrsssnccss ¥ (12) ¥ — ¥ —_ [ —_
Pension liability adjustment:

Balance at beginning of ygar- -« ¥ — ¥ —_ ¥(15,937) $(159,370)

Change in the current periog -« e — — (14,800) (118,000)

Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158 .ccveeeen — (15,937) — —

Balance at end of year - ¥ — ¥(15,937) ¥(27,737) $(277,370)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Balance at beginning of year-- e ¥ (9 608) ¥ (1,342) ¥ (3,017} $ (30,170)

Change in the current period 8,266 {1,413) (21,967) (219,670)

Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No, 158 meeee — (262) _ —_

Balance at end of YEAT e eesressssstiisa ¥ (1,342) ¥ (3,017) ¥(24,983) $ (249,830)
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The tax effect allocated to the changes in each component of other comprehensive income (loss) was as follows:

Millions of yen
Tax
Before-tax (expense) or Net-of-tax
Year ended March 31 amount benefit amount
2006:
Foreign currency translation adjustments oo ¥ 4 757 ¥ — ¥4,757
Minimum pension liability adjustment «-coeemen. 1,565 (322} 1,243
Unrealized gains {losses) on marketable securities:
Unrealized holding gains arising during perigd « v 3,694 {1,496) 2,198
Less: reclassification adjustments for losses realized
iN NEt INCOME (J0SS)-rrrrrerrrrrersminsrenirit e 178 (72) 106
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments:
Net changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments--- 30 (11} 19
Less: reclassification adjustments for gains realized
iN NEL INCOME (JOSS) < wwrwsrrrsrersemssssrsnnnsts st st (89) 32 (57
Other comprehensive income (loss) ¥10,135 ¥(1,869) ¥8,266

Milliens of yen

Before-tax (expense;rz: Net-of-tax
Year ended March 31 amount benefit amount
2007:
Foreign currency translation adjustments -, ¥ 2,789 ¥ — ¥2,789
Minimum pension liability adjustment ------seorememeiminan. (1,373) 495 (878)
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities:
Unrealized holding gains arising during period v 730 {296) 434
Less: reclassification adjustments for gains realized
IN NEL INCOME {[OSS) v rrerremrersrrrrmrerimsersrermraresene s ran s e enes (6,336) 2,566 (3,770}
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments:
Net changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments---- 17 (6) 11
Less: reclassification adjustments for losses realized
IN NELINCOME (I0SS) rrerrerrermaimirmtiinsiibit bttt 2 (1) 1
Other comprehensive INCome (JOSS) .., ¥(4,171) ¥2,758 ¥(1,413)
Milliens of yen
Tax
Before-tax {expense) or Net-of-tax
Year ended March 31 amount benefit amount
2008:
Foreign currency translation adjustments «ccccovermn. ¥ (8,589) ¥ —_ ¥ (8,589)
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities:
Unrealized holding gains arising during perigd -««---weeeernes (2,652) 1,074 (1,578)
Pension liabitity adjustment;
Prior service cost from plan amendment during pension cost - {700) _ (700)
Less: amortization of prior service cost included
in net periodic PENSION COSL =+ wrrrrsim e (1,719) 398 (1,321)
Actuarial loss from changes in measures
of the benefit obligation or plan assets during period =+ (11,392) {524) {11,916)
Less: amertization of actuarial loss included
in net periodic pension COSE reerrer e 2,781 (644) 2,137
Other comprehensive INCOME {[OgS) e, ¥(22,271) ¥ 304 ¥(21,267)
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Thousands of U.S. dollars

Before-tax (expense;r?; Net-oftax
Year ended March 31 amount benefit amount
2008:
Foreign currency translation adjustments -« - eorerernaiin $ (85,890) $ —  § (85,890)
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketabte securities:
Unrealized holding gains arising during period «-«--ssswureene (26,520) 10,740 {15,780)
Pension liahility adjustment:
Prior service cost from plan amendment during pension cost--- (7,000) —_ {7,000)
Less: amortization of prior service cost included
in net periodic PENSION COSt e rr e (17,190) 3,980 (13,210)
Actuarial loss from changes in measures
of the benefit obligation or plan assets during period -+ (113,920) (5,240) {119,160)
Less: amortization of actuarial loss included
in net periodic pension cost 27,810 (6,440) 21,370
Other comprehensive inCome {[QSS) e, $(222,710) $ 3,040 §(219,670)

11. stock Compensation Plan

30

The Company has several stock option plans (the “Plans”) approved by the shareholders under which
options were granted to directors, corporate officers and certain upperdevel employees to purchase shares
of common stock. In principle, the options will be vested after two years from the date of grant under the
condition that option holders will be employed by the Company at the date of exergising the option.

The terms of the options are subject to adjustment if there is a share split or consolidation of shares. The
Plans provide that options generally lapse automatically at termination of service before the exercise date
and generally remain exercisable for one year after termination of service during the exercise period.

The options granted on or before March 31, 2006 were vested under the condition that the Company
achieves certain targets and are exercisable over a period of two years commencing two years after the

date of grant.

The stock option activity for the year ended March 31, 2008, for stocks granted on or before March 31,

2006, was as follows:

Weighted-
average
Number remaining
of Weighted-average  contractual Aggregate
shares exercise price term intrinsic value
u.s. Millions Thousands of
Year ended March 31, 2008 Shares Yen dollars Years of yen U.S. dollars
Qutstanding at beginning of year---------- 232,000 ¥8,990 $89.90
Granted..................................................... — — J—
Excised - — — —_
e R = s F T T S POP (28,000) 8,990 89.90
Explred ..................................................... ‘204'000) 8’990 89_90

outstanding at end Of year ....................... J— —
Vested and expected to vest
at end of year......................................... — —

Exercisable at end of YEAN --eneuererrenenenaenens — —

The options granted during the year ended March 31, 2007 are exercisable over a period of four years

commencing two years after the date of grant.
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The stock option activity for the year ended March 31, 2008 was as follows:

Weighted-
average
Number remaining
of Weighted-average  contractual Aggregate
shares exercise price term intrinsic value
U.s. Millions Thousands of
Year ended March 31, 2008 Shares Yen dollars Years of yen U.S. dollars
QOutstanding at beginning of year-« oo 75,000 ¥3,92T7 $39.27
Granted-: - ereesrresmeimmmiritneiennre e ersine s anes —_— — —_
EXCISEQ «verrrrerenrerermtrmarenaiiiniisnti s nneay — — J—
Forfeitad - e (3,000) 3,927 39.27
Cutstanding at end of year -------oereeees 72,000 3,927 39.27 4.3 — —_
Vested and expected to vest
Bt end Of YEar e 72,000 3,927 3927 4.3 —_ —_—

Exercisable at end of year ------vwevieenns - — —

The weighted-average fair value per option at the date of grant during the years ended March 31, 2008 and
2007 were ¥875 and ¥837, respectively. The compensation expense is based on the grant-date fair value
estimated. The fair value of options granted Iis estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with

the following weighted-average assumptions.

Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2008
EXPECIEd [if@ e 3 years 4 years —_—
Expected volatility - 42.30% 39.40% —_
Expected dividend: e 0.47% 0.22% —_
Risk-free interest rate- 0.16% 1.09% —

The expected life is calculated by the simplified method using vesting term and contractual term of the
options. The computation of expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The
computation of risk-free interest rate is based on the long-term rate of return on Japanese Government Bonds.
The Company recognized ¥203 million, ¥25 million and ¥34 million ($340 thousand) of compensation
expense as selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and
2008, respectively. As of March 31, 2008, approximately ¥8 million {$80 thousand) of total unrecognized
compensation expense related to stock options is expected to be recognized using a straight-line method

over 3 months.

12. Net Loss Per Share

A reconciliation of the denominators of the basic and diluted per share computations for net loss was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2008 2008
NEL (GGG +errerrererrmrarerisesinsemrrisiersrnesrresiresinans ¥(98,198) ¥(41,500) ¥(15,995) $(159,950)
2006 2007 2008
Year ended March 31 Number of shares
Weighted-average number of shares of
common Stock outstanding: i 123,499,052 123,498,823 123,498,165
Weighted-average number of shares of
diluted common stock outstanding - v 123,499,052 123,498823 123,498,165
Yen U.S. dollars
Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2008 2008
Net loss per share
BaSie - e ¥(795.13) ¥(336.04) ¥(129.52) $(1.30)
Dilut@d »-- - vorrrrrrerermr (795.13) (336.04) {129.52) (1.30)
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Certain stock options and convertible bonds are not included in the computation of diluted net loss per
share for the periods presented since the inclusion would be antidilutive. The number of shares with the
potential to have a dilutive effect on net loss per share in the future is as follows:

2006 2007 2008
Year ended March 31 Number of shares
Convertib|e bonds T T T T L T R PP 11‘156'100 11|156'100 1_1_,156'100
SLOCK ORLIONS -everrerssrmmsssnssmsesssites s, 291,500 307,000 72,000

13. Related Parties

In the normal course of business, the Company purchases components, supplies, and services from and
sells its products to NEC and NEC's affiliates. The Company purchases and leases machinery and
equipment from NEC and NEC's affiliates. The Company accesses NEC's laboratories and utilizes NEC's
research on fundamental technologies. NEC allocates any expenses related to such basic research for each
period. Also, research and development expenses for custom products are partially recouped from NEC and
NEC's affiliates. NEC Logistics, Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of NEC, provides the Company with its
logistics services, including packing, coordination of product transportation, and inventory management,
and charges a fee. NEC manages financing activities geographically through its financing subsidiaries. When
the Company had an excess of funds, it provided the funds to NEC's financing subsidiaries and received
interest of 1.75% ~ 4.50%, 2.25% ~ 5.09% and 2.75% ~ 5.50% for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007
and 2008, respectively, The Company has entered into a multiyear agreement with NEC under which NEC
serves as prime contractor for the implementation of the Company’s new global information management
system. At March 31, 2007 and 2008, ¥16,335 million and ¥12,506 million ($125,060 thousand) of
software and hardware were included in property, plant and equipment, respectively, and ¥2,833 million,

¥2 277 million and ¥268 million ($2,680 thousand) of expenses related to the implementation of the system
have been charged to income for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. NEC has
granted the Company the right to use the letters “NEC" as part of its trade name and to use the “NEC” mark
as its trademark and corporate mark pursuant to a brand name license agreement. In this connection, NEC
charges a brand fee to the Company based on a percentage of sales. NEC has also provided advertising and
other administrative services to the Company. The accompanying consolidated statements of operations
include the expenses related 1o these services. The Company purchased certain machinery and equipment
from a subsidiary of NEC for the year ended March 31, 2006. Since this purchase was a transaction among
entities under common contro!, the Company accounted for this transaction as a capital transaction, and
recorded a decrease of ¥1,974 million in additional paid-in capital. As discussed in Note 1, NEC's
semiconductor business operations were transferred to the Company. Under the terms of the separation
arrangements, any subsequent income tax benefits derived from the assets and liabilities relating to the
generalpurpose DRAM business {which were not transferred at the corporate separation) are reported as
capital transactions. Accordingly, income tax benefits of ¥6,092 million are reported as an increase of
additional paid-in capital for the year ended March 31, 20086.

As discussed in Note 19, the settlement fees for DRAM ¢lass actions and others, which were determined
by arrangement with NEC, were ¥1,638 million and ¥3,222 million for the years ended March 31, 2006 and
2007, respectively. The Company paid these amounts to the claimants, or indirectly through NEC. There was
no payment for the year ended March 31, 2008.
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Transactions with related parties for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

Millions of yen

NEGT
Year ended March 31, 2006 NEC afﬂliESe: Total
T LT Y W I T ¥53,748 ¥58,464
Purchases of companents, supplies, and Services - e 3,824 59,113 62,937
Purchases of machinery and equipment ---------------------------------------- 6,972 7,965 14,937
Sh|pp|ng and hand[mg cost - e P 7'907 7,907
Lease payment-- 4,926 4,073 8,999
Research and devempment ............................................................ 6,318 8|730 15_048
Recoupment of research and development -+ - - e 2,485 483 2,968
AVErtiSING COSL:rrrrrrrrerrrrirsrrinsiarin s — 17 17
Brand fee:r-oeereer 4,255 — 4,255
Other selling, general and administrative oo 9,165 10,390 19,555
INErESE IMCOMIE «tevstsrrmrrarararmmrerrrmanarararemrrarer st rarerer e senensarasenarsnnan — 76 76
Sublease rentals receipt ................................................................ —_ 231 231
Millions of yen

NEC's
Year ended March 31, 2007 NEC affiliates Total
FT T T e ¥3,753 ¥43,376 ¥47,129
Purchases of components, supplies, and Services e 3,868 43,808 47,676
Purchases of machinery and egquipment ««-----coeoeervmerennnnnnnninee. 3,458 6,328 9,784
Shipping and handlmg COSE -+ ereesmrareierirnesee st e tesrsenarassueirresasinnsiesenans —_ 9,783 9,783
Lease payment P TR E N AT TR R ER RN AN RN PR ER AR 5.175 3'323 8.498
Research and development-----~- 5,635 13‘981 19'616
Recoupment of research and development -, 2,463 400 2,863
Advertising cost — 12 12
Brand fee------ 4,620 — 4,620
Other selling, general and administrative -------weremmmenenneens 5,409 11,083 16,492
Interest income .............................................................................. J— 114 114
Sublease rentals reCeipt L b s Bh b s bbb bbb e et e b e ak s e n e resonsarannranat s _ 182 192
Millions of yen

NEC’s
Year ended March 31, 2008 NEC affiliates Total
GAIBS +rrrrrrrrraasatarsriransntrrririnsssriair s i a st naas ¥2,993 ¥42,376 ¥45,369
Purchases of components, supplies, and Services------------reereeee 4,099 39,419 43,518
Purchases of machinery and equipment -, 961 5,453 6,414
Shipping and handling cogt - wrerrraenn 3 9,036 9,039
LEASE PAYMEE rrrrorrrreristmirteit ittt bbb ettt 5,045 3,329 8,384
Research and development - - xx oo e 4,179 13,293 17,472
Recoupment of research and development - 6,051 338 6,389
AGVEItISING COSEr +e:rrirsrrsrmre i, —_ 7 7
Brand fee ........................................................................................ 4’496 — 4’496
Other selling, general and administrative -« 4,523 9,450 13,973
INLEIEST INCOIMIE rrorrverrrvrrerrmririrsrrireras s rone s rier st ben s e srrananaaes — 135 135
Sublease rentals receipt ................................................................ — 187 187
Thousands of U.S. dollars

NEC's
Year ended March 31, 2008 NEC affiliates Total
GAIBG c++erereretretrasat ettt it e it tioasa s e s reseteemt e e nt bt s anaaeaaeaeaenrnatnaarnres 329,930 5423.760 $453,690
Purchases of components, supplies, and Services: ----s««------rreeeees 40,990 394,190 435,180
Purchases of machinery and eguipment - rweremmemminnsenin. 9,610 54,530 64,140
Shipping and handling cost 30 90,360 90,390
LEASE PAYMENt - everesssernrininsans 50,450 33,390 83,840
Research and development ----------oooeeeevennenes 41,790 132,930 174,720
Recoupment of research and development 60,510 3,380 63,890
Advertising COS e vestrrrmnrtn ittt s s e J— 70 70
Brand fee-- 44,960 — 44,960
Other sellang, general and administrative - - 45,230 94,500 139,730
Interest income - —_ 1,350 1,350
Sublease rentals reCeipt AL L E At ha e b e e e et ra b e a ey — 1'870 1’870
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14. Financial Instruments

(1} Fair value of financlal Instruments
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts receivable-trade, short-term
borrowings, notes and accounts payable-trade, accounts payable, other and accrued expenses, accrued
income taxes and other current assets and liabilities approximated fair value because of their shortterm
maturities. The carrying amounts and the estimated fair value of long-term debt, including current
portion, forward exchange contracts and interest rate swap agreements at March 31, 2007 and 2008
were summarized as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2007 2008 2008

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated

March 31 amount fair value amount fair value amount fair value

Long-term debt,
including current portion--- ¥(126,548) ¥(117,352) ¥(110,619) ¥(104,717) 5(1,106,190) $(1,047,170)
Forward exchange

CONEFACEG - xeererererserererorannn: 157 157 1,520 1,520 15,200 15,200
Interest rate swap
agreements (13) (13) —_— —_— — J—

The fair value of long-term debt is estimated using market quotes, or where market quotes are not
available, using estimated discounted future cash flows. The carrying amounts and the estimated fair
value of investments were disclosed in Note 4. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated
by obtaining quoctes for future contracts with similar maturities. The fair value of interest rate agreement
is estimated based on estimated discounted net future cash flows.

(2) Derivative financlal instruments
The Company utilizes derivative financial instruments to manage fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates. The Company has policies and precedures for risk management and
the approval, reporting and monitoring of derivative financial instruments. The Company's policies
prehibit holding or Issuing derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Forward exchange contracts

NEC Electronics Corporation and its certain subsidiaries have forward exchange contracts with financing
subsidiaries of NEC or financial institutions to offset the adverse impact of fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates on assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies arising from the
Company’s operating activities. Such forward exchange contracts are not designated as hedging
instruments under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative instruments and Hedging Activities, and
changes in fair value of forward exchange contracts are recognized in income, thereby effectively
offsetting the remeasurement of the assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. The
related receivable or payable is included in other current assets or other current liabilities.

A certain subsidiary has entered into forward exchange contracts, which are designated as hedging
instruments for forecasted transactions. Such forward exchange contracts are designated as a cash flow
hedge and, accordingly, the effective portion of the derivative’s gain or loss is initially reported as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and subsequently rectassified into
earnings when the forecasted transactions effect earnings, and the ineffective portion of the gain or
loss is reported in earnings immediately. At March 31, 2008, there are no forward exchange contracts
qualifying as a cash flow hedge.

Interest rate swap agreements

The Company entered into interest rate swap agreements to manage interest rate risk exposure
associated with underlying debt. Certain interest rate swap agreements were designated as a fair value
hedge. The interest rate swap agreements utilized by the Company effectively modified the Company's
fixed-rate debt to a floating rate. The agreements involved the receipt of fixed-rate amounts in exchange
for floating-rate interest payments over the life of the agreements without an exchange of the underlying
principal amount.
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There were no significant gains or losses on derivative financial instruments or portions thereof that
were either ineffective as hedges, excluded from assessment of hedge effectiveness, or where the
underlying risk did not occur for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2008.

The counterpzarties to the Company's derivative transactions are financing subsidiaries of NEC or
major financial institutions. As a normal business risk, the Company is exposed to credit loss in the
event of nonperformance by the counterparties, however, the Company does not anticipate
nonperformance by the counterparties to these agreements, and no material losses are expected.

15. Securitization of Receivables.

The Company has several securitization programs under which certain trade receivables are sold, without
recourse, 10 SPEs and others. In certain securitizations, the Company has retained a subordinated interest.

The Company services, administers and collects the securitized trade receivables on behalf of the SPEs and
others and the costs and fees of servicing, administrating and coltecting are not significant. For the years ended
March 31, 2006 and 2008, the Company has recorded losses of ¥18 million and ¥2 million ($20 thousand)
related to the securitization transactions.

The Company has no retained interests in the receivables sold for the year ended March 31, 2008, Expected
credit loss and discount rate used in measuring the fair value of retained interests at the sale date of the
securitization transactions completed during the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2008
Expected Cradit 088 «-- e ererrermi i i e 0.0% —_ —_—
Discount rate 4.9% — —_

A summary of cash llows received from SPEs and others for all securitization activities that occurred in the
years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.5. dollars
Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2008 2008
Proceeds from new securitization --------co--vavevmeeee ¥37,734 — ¥1,998 $19,980

Cash flows received on retained interests ««.voeee.- 8,283 — — _

16. Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expenses amounted to ¥1,082 million,
¥944 million and ¥1,033 million ($10,330 thousand) for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and
2008, respectively,

17. Restructuring Charges

During the year ended March 31, 2006, the Company announced a series of restructuring programs
consisting closing a prototype line in Japan and a manufacturing plant in Ireland. As a result, the Company
recognized restructuring charges of ¥1,683 million and ¥4,192 million for the years ended March 31, 2006
and 2007, respectively, and the cumulative amount incurred to March 31, 2007 is ¥5,875 million. For the
year ended March 31, 2006, the charges consisted of personne! costs of ¥1,010 million, accelerated
depreciation of equipment of ¥669 million, and other costs of ¥4 million. For the year ended March 31,
2007, the charges consisted of personnel costs of ¥2,375 miltion, accelerated depreciation of equipment
of ¥1,258 million, contract termination costs of ¥413 million, and other costs of ¥146 million. The
Company had paid all of the restructuring costs by March 31, 2007.

During the year ended March 31, 2008, the Company announced closing a plant in Indonesia. As a result,
the Company recognized restructuring charges of ¥1,386 million ($13,860 thousand) for the year ended
March 31, 2008. For the year ended March 31, 2008, the charges consisted of personnei costs of ¥305
miifion ($3,050 thousand}, accelerated depreciation of equipment of ¥688 million ($6,880 thousand),
contract termination costs of ¥37 million ($370 thousand), and other costs of ¥356 million ($3,560
thousand). The Company has substantially completed the restructuring plan.
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During the year ended March 31, 2008, the Company implemented an enhanced early retirement
programs with special additional payment, along with their previously earned retirement benefit, to those
employees fulfilling certain conditions, such as age and duration of employment, and voluntarily leaving the
Company as an measure to support changes, which include shifting development facilities and reorganizing
manufacturing subsidiaries in Japan. As a resuft, the Company recognized restructuring charges of ¥6,545
million ($65,450 thousand}) for the year ended March 31, 2008.

Restructuring charges for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen

Accelerated Contract
Personnel depreciation termination Other
Year Ended March 31, 2008 costs of equipment cosis costs Total
Accrual at March 31, 2005 oo ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ ¥ —
Restructuring charges «««w---rxeeeeee 1,010 669 — 4 1,683
Non-cash settlement «-«--wsvererereneeee — (669) — — (669)
Cash Payments: - oo — — — (4} (4)
Accrual at March 31, 2006 «--rxeeeeer ¥ 1,010 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 1,010
Millions of yen
Accelerated Contract
Personnel depreciation termination Other
Year Ended March 31, 2007 cOsts of equipment costs costs Total
Accrual at March 31, 2006 -+ ¥ 1,010 ¥ - ¥ - ¥ — ¥ 1,010
Restructuring charges «-+--oovveveen 2,375 1,258 413 146 4,192
Non-cash settlement - = {1.258) — (9%} (1.357)
Cash payments e (3,385) — ¥{413) (47} (3,845)
Accrual at March 31, 2007 ---woeeeee ¥ —_ ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —
Millions of yen
Agcelerated Contract
Personnel depreciation termination Cther
Year Ended March 31, 2008 costs of equipment costs costs Total
Accrual at March 31, 2007 ----eeeo ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —_
Restructuring charges ------ow-emeeeeees 6,850 688 a7 356 7,931
Non-cash settlement oo — (688) — (325) (1,013)
CaSh PAYMENLS---rseresesssesernssensianss (4,782) —_ (37 (31) (4,850)
Accrual at March 31, 2008 «---xeeveeee ¥ 2,068 ¥ —_ ¥ — ¥ - ¥ 2,068
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Accelerated Contract
Personnel depreciation termination Other
Year Ended March 31, 2008 costs of equipment costs costs Total
Accrual at March 31, 2007 oo $ — $ — $ — $ —_ $ -
Restructuring charges » - ooreremeees 68,500 6,880 370 3,560 79,310
Norrcash settlement --ceeeeremereeees - (6,880) — (3,250) (10,130}
Cash PaymEntg-— - wwrersrsreriress (47,820) —_ (370} (310) (48,500)
Accrual at March 31, 2008 - $ 20,680 $ - § — S — $ 20,680

18. Leasing Arrangements

36

The Company leases certain land, buildings, facilities and equipment for its own use.

The gross amounts of leased assets under capital lease which are leased from NEC, included in
buildings, were ¥7,207 million and ¥7,213 million {$72,130 thousand) at March 31, 2007 and 2008,
respectively. Accumulated depreciation of the leased assets at March 31, 2007 and 2008 was ¥3,090
million and ¥3,395 million {$33,950 thousand), respectively. In addition, the gross amounts of leased
assets under capital leases, the majority of which is from NEC Leasing Ltd., included in machinery and
equipment, were ¥3,121 million and ¥2,978 million ($29,780 thousand) at March 31, 2007 and 2008,
respectively. Accumulated depreciation of the leased assets at March 31, 2007 and 2008 was ¥2,137
miilion and ¥2,039 million {$20,390 thousand), respectively.
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The following is a schedule by year of the future minimum lease payments under capital leases together
with the present value of the net minimum lease payments at March 31, 2008:

Thousands of

Year ending March 31 Millions of yen L1.5. dolfars

743 7,430

577 5,770
2014 and ther@after - --se e e 3,339 33,390
Total MiNIMUM [EASE PAYMENTS -+ wwerrrstsirerreitsnsnt st sttt b 6,324 63,240
Less — amount representing iNtErast: -« - rwterm e (1,296) {12,960)
Present value of net minimum l8ase PaymMentg et 5,028 50,280
LESS = CUITENE ODIZALION «+vrserrreerestninsat ettt {821) (8,210}
Longterm 18ase ODIZALION «« - ittt ¥ 4,207 $ 42,070

Rental expense under operating leases was ¥34,174 millicn, ¥32,985 million and ¥32,753 million
{$327,530 thousand) for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. The rental
expense for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 inciuded the rental expense of ¥7,799
million, ¥7,425 million and ¥7,375 million {$73,750 thousand) under operating leases with NEC's
affiliates, respectively.

Sublease rentals received for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2008 were ¥363 million, ¥306
million and ¥231 million ($2,310 thousand), respectively. The sublease rentals received for the years ended
March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 included the sublease rentals received of ¥231 million, ¥192 million and
¥187 million ($1,870 thousand) with NEC's affiliates, respectively. The future minimum sublease rentals
receipt at March 31 2008 was ¥1,244 million ($12,440 thousand).

During the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2008, the Company mainly executed sale and lease
back agreements for certain machinery and equipment at their net book values. The proceeds were
¥52,247 million, ¥38,555 million and ¥18,596 million {$185,960 thousand), respectively, and the lease
terms are all less than S years. The leases are being accounted for as operating leases.

Certain leases require additional payments based on production volume. Contingent rentals under the
leasing agreements were ¥4,875 million, ¥6,592 million and ¥6,703 million ($67,030 thousand) for the
years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

The Company has several ieasing agreements for machinery and equipment which are accounted for as
operating leases. Certain of these lease agreements provide for purchase options or renewal options. In
addition, under the leasing agreements, the Company is obligated to guarantee the residual value of
machinery and equipment when the Company returns such machinery and equipment at the end of the
lease term. At March 31, 2008, the maximum amount of the recognized residual value guaranteed was
approximately ¥25,050 million ($250,500 thousand) and the lease term was one to five years.

Future minimum rental payments pursuant to operating leases are as follows:

Thousands of

Year ending March 31 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
1010 L ST OO OO ¥25 499 $254,990
10 1 o OO 21,670 216,700
DL +erenrrrarararianeraa et a e et e a e bbb A bbb i b nbeaea s hebebebemannnstnse i rarans 5,320 53,200
1 T TS O U 2,427 24,270
D01 AN THEIEATLET -++-++rveeereerereeimriraririrate st e seses bt asaeesaessanabasaeseeaee e s s e s srasraeae e s 459 4,590

19. commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Commitments outstanding at March 31, 2008 for the purchase of property, ptant and equipment approximated
¥10,100 million ($10:1,000 thousand).

The Company conducts business activities on a global scale. Such business activities, from time to time,
may involve legal actions, claims or other disputes. Although there are various matters pending at any one
time, management is of the opinion that settlement of all such matters pending at March 31, 2008, would not
have a material effect on the Company’'s financial position or results of cperations, except for the following:

NEC ELECTRONICS FINANCIAL REPORT 2008 37




NEC Electronics America, Inc. has been named as one of the defendants in numerous class action civil
antitrust lawsuits from direct purchasers (customers who had directly purchased DRAM from the Company in
the past) seeking damages for alleged antitrust violations in the DRAM industry. These class action lawsuits
were resclved by settlement. NEC Electronics America, Inc. is still in litigation, or in settlement negotiations
along with NEC, with several customers who have opted out of such class action lawsuits. NEC Electronics
America, Inc. has also been named as one of the defendants in numerous class action civil lawsuits from
indirect purchasers (customers who had purchased products containing DRAM), as well as a number of
antitrust lawsuits filed by the Attorneys General of numerous states in the U.5.

Additionally, the Company, together with NEC, is fully cooperating with the European Commission in its
investigation of potential viclations of European competition laws in the DRAM industry.

Furthermore, the Company is also subject to (i) investigations in connection with potential antitrust
violations in the SRAM industry being conducted by the U.S. Department of Justice and the European
Commission, {ii) investigations in connecticn with potential antitrust violations in the semiconductor industry
ranging from SRAM by the Korea Fair Trade Commission, as well as {ili) investigations by the U.S.
Department of justice, the European Commission, the Korea Fair Trade Commission, and the Competition
Bureau of Canada in connection with potential antitrust violations in the thin-film transistor liquid crystal
display (TFT-LCD) industry. NEC Electronics Corporation and NEC Electronics America, Inc. have been named
as one of the defendants in numerous class action civil antitrust lawsuits in the SRAM industry, and NEC
Electronics America, Inc. has been named as one of the defendants in numerous class actien civil antitrust
lawsuits in the TFT-LCD industry.

Although the outcome of the aforementioned investigations, antitrust lawsuits and settlement negotiations is
not known at this time, the Company has recorded the probable and reasonably estimable losses in the amount
of approximately ¥2,700 million {$27,000 thousand) as “Accounts payable, other and accrued expenses” for the
U.S. DRAM civil lawsuits and settlements with customers in the U.S. No accrual is made for contingent losses
from the other aforementioned civil lawsuits and investigations by autharities, because litigation is inherently
uncertain and difficult to predict and the amount of losses cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

20. segment Information

The operating segment of the Company is only the semiconductor business, excluding those related to the
general-purpose DRAM business.

Sales to external customers by market application for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008
were as follows:

|
‘ Thousands of

Millions of yen L.5. deollars

Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2008 2008

, CommuRnicationsg -+ oeemeessviinnnnn. - ¥107,095 ¥ 99,641 ¥ 70,350 $ 703,500
‘ Computing and Peripheralg:«--------coeememreeenns 126,581 123,714 119,352 1,193,520
Consumer Electronicg: e, 102,639 120,757 134,546 1,345,460

Automotive and Industrial 103,780 106,097 113,320 1,133,200

MUILISIATKEL I8 e reerereremrereranerarsrsmsaeremnanins 69,449 88,961 89,643 896,430

Discrete, Optical and Microwave Devices -+ 108,701 120,563 126,064 1,260,840
Other.......... 26'818 32‘547 34,470 344’700

¥645,963 ¥692,280 ¥687,745 $6,877,450
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Sales, which are attributed to geographic areas based on the country location of the Company, geographic
profit (loss) for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 and longlived assets at March 31, 2007
and 2008 were as follows:

Thousands of

Milliors of yen U.5. dollars
Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2008 2008
Net sales:
JAPAN -ooverenrere s ¥352 875 ¥377,298 ¥370,238 $3,702,380
United States of America e 716,860 67,458 58,256 582,560
EUIORPE wrereresmsssssssieinpmmms s s ens 72,961 88,008 95,936 959,360
AGIG -+ mrereremerr e e e 143,267 158,616 163,315 1,633,150
TOtAl -+ rrrererserrernesr e ¥B645,963 ¥692 280 ¥687,745 $6,877,450

The majority of sales in Europe for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were sales of a
subsidiary in Germany. The sales in China for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were
¥81,416 million, ¥98,348 million and ¥93,093 million ($930,930 thousand), respectively.

Although the disclosure of geographic profit (1055} is not required under accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the Company discloses this information as supplemental
information due to the disclosure requirements in Japan as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Year ended March 31 2006 2007 2008 2008
Geographic profit (loss):
JApaN e ¥(51,0748) ¥(38,877) ¥(9,386) $(93,860)
United States of America - 7,999 (1,0086) 755 7,550
EUFOPE -+ rrrrrsrenrninimisinarrs s 20 100 2,023 20,230
As|a............. 7'366 11,226 11,702 ]_1_7’020
¥(35,689) ¥(28,557) ¥ 5,094 $ 50,940

Thousands of

Millions of yen L.5. dollars
March 31 2007 2008 2008
Long-lived assets:
JAPAN -ee e e ¥064,070 ¥228,272 $2,282,720
United States of AMEIIE s« -«---rrerrerrasrmarrrrssrrrmseramsenasienae 11,671 12,717 127,170
EUFOPE +rresreremsnisrsimiiism st s e s 1,687 1,491 14,910
Asig- 29,043 23,062 230,620
Total ¥306,471 ¥265,542 $2,655,420

(*) Geographic profit {loss) is presented as net sales less cost of sales, research and development expenses, and selling,
general and administrative expenses.
Geographic areas are based on the country of location of the Company other than Japan and the United
States of America:
Europe: Germany, Iretand and the United Kingdom
Asia; China, Singapore, Taiwan, Malaysia, South Korea and Indonesia

Sales to NEC and NEC's affiliates accounted for 9%, 7% and 7% of total sales for the years ended March
31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. In addition, the Company sells a significant portion of its
semiconductor products through a network of independent sales distributors. The Company relies on six key
distributors for 60%, 62% and 64% of total sales for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008,
respectively. At March 31, 2007 and 2008, the Company had accounts receivable, trade of ¥43,740 million
and ¥43,779 million ($437,790 thousand), respectively, from these distributors. In addition, at March 31,
2007 and 2008, the Company had guarantee deposits received of ¥1,530 million and ¥684 million ($6,840
thousand}, respectively, from these distributors as collateral.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

& ERNST & YOUNG SHINNIHON = Tel: 033503 11N

;’I ERNST& YOUNG Hibiya Kokusai Bldg. Fax: 03 3503 1277

2.2-3, Uchisaiwai-cho
Chiyoda-ku, Tokya, Japan 100-0011
C.P.O. Box 1196, Tokyo, Japan 100-8641

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and Sharcholders
NEC Electronics Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NEC Electronics
Corporation (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2007 and 2008, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended, March 31, 2008, all expressed in Japanese yen. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal contro! over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of NEC Electronics Corporation at March 31,
2007 and 2008, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended March 31, 2008 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also reviewed the translation of the financial statements mentioned above into
United States dollars on the basis described in Note 3. In our opinion, such statements
have been translated on such basis.

June 26, 2008
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